

Request for Bids

Society for Climate Resilient Agriculture in Mizoram (SCRAM) on behalf of the Government of Mizoram (GoM)

Funded/Administered by the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)

> for Procurement of Works

Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads

using

National Competitive Bidding

Ref: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2

Issue date: 28th February, 2022

Intentionally left blank

Table of Contents

Section I. Invitation for Bids	4
Section II. Instructions to Bidders	6
Section III. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	24
Section IV. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria	28
Section V. Bidding Forms	
Section V (A). Contractor's Letter of Bid	33
Section V (R). Contractor's Letter of Did	
Section V (B). Qualification Information (to be filled by the Bidder)	
Section V (C). Bid Security Format Section V (D). Bid Securing Declaration Form	
Section V (E). Technical Proposal Documents to be Submitted by the Bidder	
Section VI. General Conditions of Contract	56
Section VII. Specific Conditions of Contract (SCC)	76
Works Requirements	80
Section IX. Drawings	۵۵
occurring summings	
Section X. Bill of Quantities OR Activity Schedule	91
Section XI. Contract Forms	112
Section XI (A). Notice of Intent to Award	113
Section XI (B). Letter of Acceptance	
Section XI (C). Contract Agreement	
Section XI (D). Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment	
Section XI (E). Performance Security Form	
Section XI (F). Self-Certification Form	
Section XI (G). Revised IFAD Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Ac	
Operations	

Section I. Invitation for Bids

[Aizawl, India] [February, 28, 2022]

Re: Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads

Ref: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2

- 1. The Government of Mizoram (GoM) has received financing from the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD) and intends to apply a part of the proceeds to the financing of this procurement. The use of any IFAD financing shall be subject to IFAD's approval, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the financing agreement, as well as IFAD's rules, policies and procedures. IFAD and its officials, agents and employees shall be held harmless from and against all suits, proceedings, claims, demands, losses and liability of any kind or nature brought by any party in connection with Fostering Climate Resilient Upland Farming System in the Northeast (FOCUS), Mizoram.
- 2. The Fostering Climate Resilient Upland Farming System in the Northeast (FOCUS), Mizoram includes an overall objective to increase agricultural income of 64,500 households and to enhance their resilience to climate change. This would be achieved through the development objective of increasing the environmental sustainability and profitability of farming systems practiced by highland farmers, FOCUS-Mizoram covers 272 villages in 24 circles/blocks of 6 districts in the state. The districts covered under the project are Champhai, Kolasib, Serchhip, Mamit, Khawzawl and Saitual. The project is expected to be completed by 2024.
- The employer now invites sealed bids from eligible entities ("bidders") for the execution and completion of *Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads* (*Flexible Pavement- using Bituminous Macadam*), which are being bid as a unit price contract based on the Bill of Quantities (BoQ).
- 4. This IFB is open to all eligible bidders who wish to participate. Subject to the restrictions stipulated in the bidding document, eligible bidders may associate with other bidders to enhance their capacity to successfully carry out the works.

Lot No	Name of Road	Length	Bid Security Amount
Lot 1	Thinglubul Road, Serchhip	6.4 kms	Rs. 7,50,000.00
Lot 2	Mualkawi Road, Baktawng	5.6 kms	Rs. 6,00,000.00
Lot 3	Lungzawl Road, E.Bungtlang	7.0 kms	Rs. 7,90,000.00

5. The works, and the contract/s expected to be awarded, are divided into the following lots:

Note: Bids will be evaluated and contract will be awarded for each lot separately.

- 6. A contractor will be selected using the national competitive bidding (NCB) method in accordance with the IFAD Procurement Handbook accessible at <u>www.ifad.org/project-procurement</u>. The NCB process will include a review and verification of qualifications and past performance, including a reference check, prior to the contract award.
- 7. Please note that a pre-bid conference *will* be held as described in the Bid Data Sheet ("BDS"), Section III of the bidding document.
- 8. Bidders interested in submitting a bid shall obtain/download the bidding document from the official website of FOCUS-Mizoram (Tender) and by sending an e-mail or letter, giving full contact details of the bidder, to the following point of contact. This will ensure that the bidders receive updates regarding this bidding document. *The Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM &*

State Project Director, FOCUS-Mizoram Basement-I, ZIDCO Building, MINECO, Khatla, Aizawl, Mizoram- 796001 Email: po.focusmz@gmail.com

- 9. Bids must be delivered to the address and in the manner specified in the BDS ITB 22.1, no later than **28**th **March, 2021; 2:00 PM IST in a sealed envelope.**
- 10. Bidders should be aware that late bids will not be accepted under any circumstance and will be returned unopened at the written request and cost of the bidder. All bids must be accompanied by a bid security or a bid securing declaration (as required) in the manner and amount specified in the Bid Data Sheet.
- 11. Please note that electronic bids shall not be accepted.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/- R.K. NITHANGA

Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM

State Project Director FOCUS-Mizoram

Section II. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

1.	Scope of bid and funding	. 8
2.	Source of funds	. 8
3.	Prohibited practices	
4.	Sexual Harassment, Sexual exploitation and Abuse	10
5.	Money laundering and terrorist financing	
6.	SECAP performance standards	
7.	Eligible bidders and conflict of interest	12
8.	Qualification of the bidder	
9.	One bid per bidder	
10.	Cost of bidding	
11.	Pre-bid meeting and site visit	
12.	Contents of bidding documents	15
13.	Clarification and amendments of bidding documents	16
14.	Language of bid	
15.	Documents comprising the bid	16
16.	Bid prices	16
17.	Currency of bid and payment	17
18.	Bid validity	17
19.	Bid security	17
20.	Format and signing of bid	18
21.	Sealing and marking of bids	19
22.	Deadline for submission of Bids	19
23.	Late bids	19
24.	Modification and withdrawal of bids	19
25.	Bid opening	20
26.	Process to be confidential	20
27.	Clarification of bids2	20
28.	Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness	20
29.	Correction of errors	21

30.	Evaluation and comparison of bids	. 21
31.	Award criteria	. 22
32.	Employer's right to accept any bid and to reject any or all bids	. 22
33.	Notice of intent to award	. 22
34.	Bid protest	. 22
35.	Notification of award and signing of agreement	. 22
36.	Advance payment	. 23
	Performance security	

Instructions to Bidders

Scope of bid and 1.1 The employer, as defined in the Bidding Data Sheet (BDS), invites bids for the construction of works, as described in the BDS. The name and identification number of the contract is provided in the BDS.

1.2 The successful bidder shall be expected to complete the works by the required completion date specified in the SCC.

- 2. Source of funds 2.1 The "Government of Mizoram (GoM)" has received (or in appropriate cases "has applied for") a financing from the International Fund for Agricultural Development ("the Fund" or "IFAD") in various currencies equivalent to 35 million USD towards the cost of Fostering Climate Resilient Upland Farming System in the Northeast (FOCUS), Mizoram, and intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of this loan/grant to eligible payments under this contract.
- 3. Prohibited practices 3.1 The Fund requires that all beneficiaries of IFAD funding, including the employer and any bidders, implementing partners, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, sub-consultants, and any of their agents (whether declared or not) and personnel observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts, and comply with IFAD's Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations, revised on 12 December 2018 and attached as Section XI (G) (EB 2018/125/R.6, hereinafter "IFAD's Anti-Corruption Policy").

3.2 For the purposes of these provisions, and consistent with IFAD's Anticorruption Policy, the terms set forth below are defined as follows, and sometimes referred to collectively as "prohibited practices":

- (a) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value in order to improperly influence the actions of another party;
- (b) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party in order to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (c) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including improperly influencing the actions of another party;

- (d) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of any party, to improperly influence the actions of that or another party;
- (e) "obstructive practice" is (i) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing evidence that may be material to an investigation by the Fund or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an investigation by the Fund; (ii) threatening, harassing or intimidating any party in order to prevent that party from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to an investigation by the Fund or from pursuing such an investigation; and/or (iii) the commission of any act intended to materially impede the exercise of the Fund's contractual rights of audit, inspection and access to information.

3.3 The Fund will deny approval of a proposed contract award if it determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, or any of its personnel or agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers and/or any of their personnel or agents, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in any of the prohibited practices in connection with an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed activity or operation, including in competing for the contract.

3.4 In accordance with IFAD's Anticorruption Policy, the Fund has the right to sanction firms and individuals, including by declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to participate in any IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed activity or operation. This may include ineligibility to: (i) be awarded or otherwise benefit from any IFAD-financed contract, financially or in any other manner; (ii) be a nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer, supplier, subsupplier, agent or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded an IFAD-financed contract; and (iii) receive the proceeds of any loan or grant provided by the Fund.¹ The Fund also has the right to unilaterally recognize debarments by any of the International Financial Institutions that are members to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions if such debarments meet the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

3.5 In addition, the Fund has the right to, at any time, declare a misprocurement and/or the ineligibility of any expenditures associated with a procurement process or contract if it determines that prohibited practices occurred in connection with this procurement process or contract and that the borrower/recipient has not taken timely and appropriate action, satisfactory to the Fund, to address such practices when they occur.

3.6 Bidders, suppliers, consultants, contractors, and their subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents and personnel, are required to fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the Fund into possible prohibited practices, including by making personnel available for interviews and by providing full access to any and all accounts, premises, documents and records (including electronic records) relating to the relevant IFAD-financed and/or IFADmanaged operation or activity and to have such accounts, premises, records and documents audited and/or inspected² by auditors and/or investigators appointed by the Fund.

3.7 The bidder is obliged to disclose relevant prior sanctions and criminal convictions and any commissions or fees paid or are to be paid to any agents or other party in connection with this procurement process or the execution of the contract.

3.8 The bidder shall keep all records and documents, including electronic records, relating to this procurement process available for a minimum of three (3) years after notification of completion of the process or, in case the bidder is awarded the contract, execution of the contract.

4. Sexual Harassment, Sexual exploitation and Abuse

4.1 The Fund requires that all beneficiaries of IFAD Funding, including the employer and any bidders, implementing partners, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, sub-consultants, and any of their agents (whether declared or not) and personnel comply with IFAD's Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse. For the purpose of this provision, and consistent with IFAD's Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual

² Inspections include all fact-finding activities deemed relevant by the Fund to address allegations or other indications of possible Prohibited Practices. Such fact-finding activities may include, but are not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data or information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation or audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verifications of information. It is the responsibility of the firm or individual under inspection to ensure effective compliance with their duty to cooperate vis-à-vis any potential local laws or regulations or other potentially conflicting obligations.

Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse as it may be amended from time to time, the terms set forth below are defined as follows:

- (a) Sexual harassment means "any unwelcome sexual advance, request for sexual favour or other verbal, non-verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that unreasonably interferes with work, alters or is made a condition of employment, or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.
- (b) Sexual exploitation and abuse means "any actual or attempted abuse of a position of vulnerability, differential power, or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of others (sexual exploitation); the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions (sexual abuse)".

4.2 Employers, suppliers and bidders shall take all appropriate measures to prevent and prohibit sexual harassment and sexual exploitation and abuse on the part of their personnel and subcontractors or anyone else directly or indirectly employed by them or any of subcontractors in the performance of the contract. Contractors, suppliers and bidders shall immediately report to the employer or IFAD any incidents of sexual harassment and sexual exploitation and abuse arising out of or in connection with the performance of the contract or prior to its execution, including convictions, disciplinary measures, sanctions or investigations. The employer may take appropriate measures, including the termination of the contract, on the basis of proven acts of sexual harassment, sexual exploitation and abuse arising out of or in connection with the performance of the contract.

4.3 The bidder or subcontractor or supplier is required to disclose any relevant prior sanctions, convictions, disciplinary measures or criminal records.

5. Money laundering and terrorist financing 5.1 The Fund requires that all beneficiaries of IFAD funding or funds administered by IFAD, including the employer, any bidders, implementing partners, service providers and suppliers, observe the highest standards of integrity during the procurement and execution of such contracts, and commit to combat money laundering and terrorism financing consistent with IFAD's Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Policy.

- 6. SECAP
performance
standards6.1 The resulting contract will be implemented in a manner
consistent with IFAD's Social, Environmental and Climate Assessment
Procedures (SECAP), available on https://www.ifad.org/en/secap.
- 7. Eligible bidders 7.1 and conflict of req interest

7.1 This invitation to bid is open to all national bidders with the required classification as given in the BDS.

7.2 Any eligible entity may bid independently or in a joint venture. In the case where a bidder is or proposes to be a JV (a) all members will be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the contract; and (b) the JV will nominate a representative who will have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV.

A bidder shall not have any actual, potential or reasonably 7.3 perceived conflict of interest. A bidder shall declare in the bid submission form any actual, potential or reasonably perceived interest, regardless of its nature, that affects, may affect, or might reasonably be perceived by others to affect, impartiality in any matter relevant to the procurement process, including the selection process and the execution of the contract. A bidder with an actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflict of interest shall be disqualified, unless otherwise explicitly approved by the Fund. The employer requires that the bidder and the supplier hold the project's interests as paramount at all times, strictly avoiding any actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflicts of interest, including actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflicts with other assignments or their own personal and/or corporate interests, and act without any consideration for any other ongoing or future work. Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, a bidder or supplier, including all parties constituting the bidder or supplier and their respective personnel and affiliates, as well as any subcontractors for any part of the contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates, may be considered to have an actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflict of interest and disqualified or terminated if they:

- a) have, may have or might reasonably appear to have at least one controlling partner in common with one or more other parties in the process contemplated by this bidding document or the execution of the contract; or
- b) have, may have or might reasonably appear to have the same legal representative as another bidder for purposes of this bid or execution of the contract; or

- c) have, may have or might reasonably appear to have a relationship, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to undue or undisclosed information about or influence over the bid process and the execution of the contract, or influence the decisions of the employer regarding the selection process for this procurement or during the execution of the contract; or
- d) participate, may participate or might reasonably appear to participate in more than one bid in this process; participation by a bidder in more than one bid shall result in the disqualification of all bids in which the party is involved; however, this provision does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; or
- e) are themselves, may be or might reasonably appear to be, or have, may have or might reasonably appear to have a business or family relationship with, a member of the employer's board of directors or its personnel, the Fund or its personnel, or any other individual was, has been or might reasonably be directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of this bidding document, (ii) the selection process for this procurement, or (iii) execution of the contract, unless the actual, potential or reasonablyperceived conflict stemming from this relationship has been explicitly authorized by the Fund.

7.4 A bidder and the supplier shall have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest that impacts, may impact, or might reasonably appear to be perceived by others to impact, their capacity to serve the best interest of the employer. Failure to properly disclose any of said situations may lead to appropriate actions, including the disqualification of the bidder, the termination of the Contract and any other as appropriate under the IFAD Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Projects and Operations.

7.5 A bidder or supplier, all parties constituting the bidder or supplier, and any subcontractors for any part of the contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates, will not be any person or entity under a declaration of ineligibility by the Fund for having engaged in prohibited practices as contemplated by ITB clause 3 above. The Fund also has the right to unilaterally recognize debarments by any of the International Financial Institutions that are members to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions if such debarments meet the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions.

7.6 A bidder or contractor, all parties constituting the bidder or contractor, and any subcontractors for any part of the contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates not otherwise made ineligible for a reason described in this ITB clause 7 will nonetheless be excluded if:

- as a matter of law or official regulation, the government prohibits commercial relations with the country of the bidder or supplier (including any associates, subcontractors and any respective affiliates) provided that the Fund is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or
- b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the government prohibits the issuance of a payment.
- Qualification of the bidder
 8.1 All bidders shall provide in accordance with Section IV of the bidding document, qualification information, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary.

8.2 To qualify for award of the contract, bidders shall meet the following minimum

- Annual volume of construction work during past two years of at least the amount specified in the BDS;
- experience as prime contractor in the construction of at least one works of a nature and complexity equivalent to the works over the last 2 years (to comply with this requirement, works cited should be at least 80 percent complete);
- c) proposals for the timely acquisition (own, lease, hire, etc.) of the essential equipment listed in the BDS; and
- d) key personnel required for the performance of the contract with the qualifications and experience detailed in the BDS and Section IV.

9. One bid per bidder
 9.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid, either individually or as a partner in a joint venture. Any bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid will be disqualified. Partners in a joint venture shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the contract.

- **10.Cost of bidding** 10.1 The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his bid, and the employer will in no case be responsible or liable for such costs.
- **11.Pre-bid meeting** and site visit 11.1 If so provided for in the BDS, the employer invites the bidder's authorized representative to attend a pre-bid meeting at the place, time and date indicated. The purpose of the pre-bid meeting will be to clarify the issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.

11.2 The bidder, at the bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the site of works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the works. The costs of visiting the site shall be at the bidder's own expense.

- 12.1 The set of bidding documents comprises the documents listed in the table below and addenda in accordance with ITB 13:
 - I. Invitation to Bid
 - II. Instruction to Bidders
 - III. Bid Data Sheet
 - IV. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria
 - V. Bidding Forms
 - VI. General Conditions of Contract
 - VII. Special Conditions of Contract
 - VIII. Specifications
 - IX. Drawings
 - X. Bill of Quantities
 - XI. Contract Forms

13. Clarification and amendments of bidding documents
13.1 A prospective bidder may request clarification of the bidding documents from the employer in writing. The employer shall respond to such requests if received within 14 calendar days prior to the deadline for the submission of bids. The employer shall also send copies of its response to all bidders who have purchased the bidding documents without identifying the originator of the request. Similarly, prior to the bid submission deadline, the employer may modify the bidding documents by issuing addenda.

14. Language of bid 14.1 All documents relating to the bid and contract shall be in English.

15. Documents comprising the bid

- 15.1 The bid submitted by the bidder shall comprise the following:
 - a) The Letter of Bid (in the format indicated in Section V);
 - b) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration;
 - c) Priced Bill of Quantities or priced Activity Schedule;
 - d) list of key personnel and their qualifications as specified in the BDS;
 - e) qualification Information Form and supporting Documents; and;
 - f) The Bidder's Technical Proposal and any other documents required to be completed and submitted by bidders, as specified in the BDS.

16. Bid prices

16.1 The contract shall be for whole works, as described in ITB 1.1, based on the priced bill of quantities or priced activity schedule for lump sum contracts submitted by the bidder. The type of contract (unit price based on bill of quantities or lump sum based on activity schedule) is specified in the BDS.

16.2 The bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the works described in the bill of quantities (for lump sum contracts, an amount against each activity schedule as described in the drawings and specifications). Items for which no rate or price is entered by the bidder will not be paid for by the employer when executed and shall be

deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the bill of quantities or activity schedule. The bidder shall also fill in any applicable discounts in its letter of bid.

16.3 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 14 calendar days prior to the deadline for submission of bids, shall be included in the rates, prices, and total bid price submitted by the bidder (for lump sum contracts, "the rates and prices" are not applicable).

16.4 The rates and prices (or the lump sum price) quoted by the bidder shall be fixed for the duration of the contract and shall not be subject to any adjustment of any kind.

- 17. Currency of bid and payment17.1 The currency in which payments shall be made to the contractor under this contract shall be those in which the bid price was expressed. Bid prices shall be expressed in the currency/ies specified in the BDS.
- **18.Bid validity 18.1** Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS. The employer may request that the bidders extend the period of validity for a specified additional period. The request and the bidders' responses shall be made in writing. A bidder agreeing to the request will not be required or permitted to otherwise modify the bid, but will be required to extend the validity of bid security or bid-securing declaration for the period of the extension requested by the employer.
- **19.Bid security** 19.1 The bidder shall furnish, as part of its bid, either a bid security or a bid-securing declaration, as specified in the BDS.

19.2 If a bid security is required, it shall be in the amount and currency specified in the BDS, and shall be in one of the following forms:

- a) a bank guarantee or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a reputable bank located in the employer's country or abroad, in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the employer and valid for thirty (30) days beyond the validity of the bid; or
- b) a cashier's or certified cheque.

19.3 Any bid not secured in accordance with this ITB 19 will be rejected by the employer as non-responsive, pursuant to ITB clause 28.

19.4 Unsuccessful bidders' bid securities will be discharged or returned as promptly as possible but not later than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the period of bid validity prescribed by the employer pursuant to ITB clause 18.

19.5 The successful bidder's bid security (if applicable) will be discharged upon the bidder signing the contract, pursuant to ITB clause 35, and furnishing the performance security, pursuant to ITB clause 37.

19.6 The bid security may be forfeited:

- a) If a Bidder:
 - i. Withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the bidder on the letter of bid, or
 - Does not accept the correction of errors pursuant to ITB clause 29.1(c); or
- b) In the case of a successful bidder, if the bidder fails:
 - i. to sign the contract in accordance with ITB clause 35; or
 - ii. to furnish performance security in accordance with ITB clause 37.

20. Format and signing of bid

20.1 The bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in ITB Clause 15 clearly marked "original". In addition, the bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number specified in the BDS, and clearly marked as "copies". In the event of discrepancy between them, the original shall prevail.

20.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder. All pages of the bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be by the person or persons signing the bid.

20.3 The bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those to comply with instructions issued by the employer, or as necessary to correct errors made by the bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the bid.

21. Sealing and marking of bids	21.1 The bidder shall seal the original and all copies of the bid in two inner envelopes and one outer envelope, duly marking the inner envelopes as "original" and "copies".
	21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall
	 a) be addressed to the employer at the address provided in the BDS;
	 bear the name and identification number of the contract as defined in the BDS ITB 1.1; and
	c) provide a warning stating that a "bid inside" and that the envelope is not to be opened before the specified time and date for bid opening as defined in the BDS.
	21.3 In addition to the identification required in ITB sub-clause 21.2, the inner envelopes shall indicate the name and address of the Bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared late, pursuant to ITB sub-clause 23.1.
	21.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.
22. Deadline for submission of Bids	22.1 Bids shall be delivered to the employer at the address specified above no later than the time and date specified in the BDS.
Dius	22.2 The employer may extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with ITB sub-clause 13.1, in which case all rights and obligations of the employer and the bidders previously subject to the original deadline will then be subject to the new deadline.
23. Late bids	23.1 Any bid received by the employer after the deadline prescribed in the ITB BDS 22 will be returned unopened to the bidder.
24. Modification and withdrawal of bids	24.1 Bidders may modify or withdraw their bids by giving notice in writing before the deadline prescribed in the ITB BDS 22.
DIUƏ	24.2 Each bidder's modification or withdrawal notice shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and delivered in accordance with ITB clause 21, with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "modification" or "withdrawal", as appropriate.
	24.3 No bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of bids

24.4 Withdrawal of a bid between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity as extended all pursuant to the ITB sub-clause 18.1 may result in the forfeiture of the bid security pursuant to ITB sub-clause 19.6.

24.5 Bidders may offer discounts, or otherwise modify the prices of their bids by submitting bid modifications in accordance with this clause, or included in the original bid submission.

- 25.Bid opening 25.1 The employer will open the bids, including modifications in the presence of the bidders' representatives who choose to attend at the time and in the place specified in the BDS. The bidders' names, the bid prices, the total amount of each bid, any discounts, any bid modifications and withdrawals, the presence or absence of bid security or bid-securing declaration will be announced by the employer at the opening.
- 26. Process to be confidential26.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of bids and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed until the notice of Intent to award to the successful bidder has been dispatched to all bidders.
- 27. Clarification of bids
 bids
 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of bids, the employer may, at the employer's discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of the bidder's bid. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing or by email, or facsimile, but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the employer in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with ITB clause 29.

28. Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness 28.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the employer will determine whether each bid is substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding documents and that the original of a valid bid security or bid-securing declaration is enclosed within the bid. A substantially responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions, and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (a) which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the works; (b) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the employer's rights or the bidder's obligations under the contract; or (c) whose rectification would affect unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

28.2 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non- conforming deviation or reservation.

28.3 If so indicated in the BDS, the employer will assign a technical score to each responsive bid based on the quality of the technical proposal submitted by the bidder in its bid.

- 29. Correction of errors29.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the employer for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the employer as follows:
 - a) Where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
 - b) Where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern;
 - c) If a bidder refuses to accept the correction, its bid will be rejected and the corresponding bid security shall be forfeited in accordance with sub-clause 19.6.
- 30. Evaluation and comparison of bids
 30.1 The employer will evaluate and compare only the bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with ITB Clause 28.

30.2 In evaluating the bids, the employer will determine the bid which offers the best value for money; namely either the bid with the lowest evaluated bid price or the bid with the highest combined score of quality and price whichever method is indicated in the BDS. In order to arrive at the evaluated bid price the employer shall proceed as follows:

- a) Making any correction for errors pursuant to ITB clause 29;
- b) Excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the bill of quantities (or activity schedule for lump sum contracts), but including daywork, where priced competitively;
- c) Making appropriate adjustments to reflect discounts or other price modifications offered in accordance with ITB subclause 16.2.

30.3 The employer may waive any minor informality or non-conformity which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such waiver

does not prejudice or affect the relative standing of any bidder. Alternative offers with respect to time for completion or payment terms or any other evaluation factors, if so stipulated in Section IV-Qualification and Evaluation Criteria, will be taken into account in bid evaluation.

- **31. Award criteria** 31.1 Subject to ITB clause 28 and ITB clause 30, the employer will award the contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents and who has offered the best value for money, provided that such bidder is qualified and eligible in accordance with the provisions of ITB clause 7 and ITB clause 8.
- 32. Employer's right to accept any bid to accept or reject any bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject any or all bids
 32.1 Notwithstanding ITB clause 31, the employer reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids, at any time prior to the award of contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected bidder or bidders or any obligation to inform the affected bidder or bidders of the grounds for the employer's action.
- **33. Notice of intent to** 33.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the employer shall send the notice of intent to award to the successful bidder with a copy to all other bidders. The notice of intent to award shall include a statement that the employer shall issue a formal notification of award and the draft contract agreement after expiration of the period for filing bid protests and the resolution of any bid protests that are submitted. Delivery of the notice of intent to award shall not constitute the formation of a contract between the employer and the successful bidder and no legal or equitable rights will be created through the delivery of the notice of intent to award.
- **34. Bid protest** 34.1 Bidders may protest the results of a procurement only according to the rules established in module M of the IFAD Procurement Handbook.
- 35. Notification of award and signing of agreement
 35.1 The bidder whose bid has been successful will be notified of the award by the employer prior to expiration of the bid validity period by registered letter. This letter (hereinafter and in the condition of contract called the "Letter of Acceptance") will state the sum that the employer will pay the contractor in consideration of the execution, completion, and maintenance of the works by the contractor as prescribed by the contract (hereinafter and in the contract called the "contract price").

35.2 The notification of award will constitute the formation of the contract.

35.3 The employer will send the successful bidder the agreement form provided in the bidding documents incorporating all agreements between the employer and the successful bidder. It will be sent to the successful bidder within 14 calendar days following the notification of award. Within 14 calendar days of receipt, the successful bidder shall sign the agreement and deliver it to the employer.

35.4 Upon receipt of the signed agreement from the bidder, the employer will promptly notify the other bidders that their bids have been unsuccessful.

- **36. Advance payment 36.1** The employer will provide an advance payment as stipulated in the conditions of contract, subject to a maximum amount, as stated in the BDS. For receiving the advance payment, the bidder shall make an estimate of and include the requirement in its bid, the expenses that will be incurred in order to commence work. These expenses will relate to the purchase of equipment, machinery materials, and for the engagement of staff/labour during the first month beginning with the date of the employer's "notice to proceed" as specified in the SCC.
- 37. Performance security
 37.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of the letter of acceptance, the successful bidder shall deliver to the employer a performance security in accordance with the terms of GCC clause 37, and for the amount specified in the BDS, using for that purpose the form of performance security included in Section XI, Contract Forms, or another form acceptable to the employer. A foreign institution providing the performance security shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the employer's country.

37.2 Failure of the successful bidder to submit the above-mentioned performance security or to sign the contract within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of the letter of acceptance shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security. In the event, the employer may award the contract to the next ranking bid that is substantially responsive and which is submitted by a bidder who is determined by the employer to be qualified to perform the contract satisfactorily.

Section III. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

Instructions to Bid (ITB) Reference	Data relevant to the ITB	
1.1	The employer is: Society for Climate Resilient Agriculture in Mizoram (SCRAM) The works consist of: <u>Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads</u>	
	Lot 1: Thinglubul Road, Serchhip, of 6.4 kms length with a Bid Security of INR 7,50,000.00	
	Lot 2: Mualkawi Road, Baktawng of 5.6 kms length with a Bid Security of	
	<u>INR 6,00,000.00</u>	
	Lot 3: Lungzawl Road, E.Bungtlang of 7.0 kms length with a Bid Security	
	of INR 7,90,000.00	
	The name and identification number of the contract is: Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads (Flexible Pavement- using Bituminous Macadam), Ref: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2	
7.1	Eligible bidders are:-	
	 IInd Class of contractor or higher category as specified in the enlistment rules of Central Public Works Department (CPWD), valid between 2021 & 2022, and 	
	 Ist class contractor specified in the enlistment rules of Mizoram Public Works Department (MPWD), valid between 2021 & 2022 and Grade A of Mizoram Finance empaneled firms. 	
8.2(a)	The minimum required annual volume of construction work for the successful bidder in any of the last five years (for each lot) shall be:	
	Three works of INR 2.00 Crores (minimum) each of which two (2) works should be road works (Flexible Pavement) and (1) one can be any civil works excluding maintenance works.	
8.2(c)	The minimum essential equipment to be made available for the contract by the successful bidder (for each separate lot) shall be:-	
	i) Road Roller- 1 no; 8-10 TPH	
	ii) Truck/Tripper- 2 nos	
	iii) 207 pickup truck- 2 nos	
	<i>iv)</i> Hot mix plant- 1 no	
	v) Air compressor- 1 no	
	vi) Sprayer/Distributor- 4 nos	
	<i>vii)</i> Vibrator- 1 no	
	<i>viii)</i> Mixer- minimum 500 ltr	
	ix) Generator- 1 (min 2 KVA)	

8.2(d)	The key contractor staff (for each lot) are:		
	Detailed requirements about years of experience and professional profile of each key staff member are presented in Section IV- Qualification and Evaluation:		
	1. Project Site Manager- 1 person (B.E (Civil) or higher, min 5 years experience)		
	2. Project Engineer- 1 person (B.E (Civil) or higher 3 years experience in roads construction)		
	 Environmental & Social Specialist-1 person (B.S.W / M.S.W / B.Sc Env. with min 3 years experience) 		
	4. Site Engineer- 5 persons (Diploma in Civil Engineering or higher with min 3 years experience in roads construction)		
	 Health and Safety Specialist- 1 person (B.A or equivalent with min 3 years of experience in works construction) 		
11.1	Pre-bid meeting <i>shall be</i> held.		
	The pre-bid meeting shall be held at the following address:		
	Zoom virtual conference		
	Link:		
	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84412064638?pwd=VnhwTXJiMDJvdTF2QWY zMUITcXA4QT09 or		
	Meeting ID: 844 1206 4638		
	Passcode: 930420		
	The date and time of the pre-bid meeting is 15th March, 2022; 11:00 AM IST.		
	*A site visit shall not be organized by the Employer.		
15.1(f)	Bidders shall submit: <i>technical proposal including method statement, site organization, manning levels and categories, detailed construction program, schedule of material installation.</i>		
	Bidders shall submit with their bid: <i>All the qualification requirement (all pages signed) and Circulum Vitate (CVs) of all key personnel</i>		
16.1	This shall be a "Unit Price Contract based on Priced Bill of Quantities"		
17.1	The currency(ies) of the bid shall be as follows: INR (Indian rupees)		
	The currency that shall be used for bid evaluation and comparison is: <i>INR</i> (<i>Indian rupees</i>)		
	The basis for conversion shall be: NA		
18.1	The period of bid validity shall be 90 days after the deadline for bid submission specified in the BDS.		
19.1 & 19.2	A bid security <i>is</i> required to be submitted with a bid in a Bank Demand Draft or a Bid Security issued by a nationalized bank.		

	The amount of bid security shall be:
	Lot 1- INR 7,50,000.00
	Lot 2- INR 6,00,000.00
	Lot 3- INR 7,90,000.00
	The bid security shall be in favor on the Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM, Aizawl, Mizoram.
20.1	The number of copies (in addition to the original) of the bid to be completed and returned shall be one: i.e., One original and one duplicate copy .
21.2(a) & 21.2(c) &	The employer's address for the purpose of bid submission is
22.1	Office of the Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM &
	State Project Director, FOCUS Mizoram,
	Basement-I, ZIDCO Building,
	MINECO, Khatla, Aizawl Mizoram- 796001
22.1 & 25.1	The deadline for submission of bids shall be 28 th March, 2022,14:00 hours (2:00 PM) , and bids shall be opened immediately thereafter at 14:00 hours (2:00 PM IST) on the same date and at the following address:
	Office of the Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM &
	State Project Director, FOCUS-Mizoram
	Basement-I, ZIDCO Building, MINECO,
	Khatla, Aizawl, Mizoram
	Note: Due to COVID-19 CAB, Bidders have the option to attend virtually on the link and information provided below:
	Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89096977525?pwd=a3VKU0RuK2Nxd0I2T0ow dXpnaEw3UT09
	Meeting ID: 890 9697 7525
	Passcode: 325605
28.2	The weight assigned by the employer for the quality of the Technical Proposal including observance of environmental and social requirements is:
	Technical proposal of the bidder is evaluated on pass/fail (responsive/non- responsive basis). The bidder with the lowest evaluated cost based on mentioned price criteria in section IV shall be the one offering the best value for money and is to be recommended for award, subject to post- qualification.

30.2	The best value for money bid evaluation methodology to be used by the employer in evaluating the bids is: Combined technical and financial weights: <i>Technical proposal of the bidder is evaluated on pass/fail (responsive/non-responsive basis).</i> <i>The bidder with the lowest evaluated cost based on mentioned price criteria in section IV shall be the one offering the best value for money and is to be recommended for award, subject to post-gualification.</i>
36.1	The advance payment shall be limited to 5% percent of the contract price.
37.1	The form, amount and currency of the performance security shall be a bank guarantee representing 10% of the respective contract price issued by a nationalized bank.

Section IV. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria

1. . Process

This section contains all the criteria that the employer shall use to examine and evaluate bids, qualify bidders and select the winning bid. The bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section V, Bidding Forms.

The employer shall evaluate the bids as follows:

A. Bid Examination.

<u>A1. Administrative Examination.</u> This review is conducted to determine that the bid is complete, all required documents are included, all forms are included and are completed and the bid duly signed by the bidder's authorized representative. The bidder may be requested to submit additional information or documentation within a reasonable period of time and/or to correct nonmaterial nonconformities in the bid related to documentation requirements. Determinations made during this review include:

- Determine if the bid is sealed, signed and marked as per the requirements of ITB 20 and ITB 21;
- Determine if the bid security in the correct format is enclosed;
- Determine eligibility of bidder and if it meets required classification;
- Determine if all required forms are included and completed.

<u>A2. Responsiveness Determination.</u> This review will be conducted to determine if the bid is substantially responsive as explained in ITB 28. A substantially responsive bid is one that meets the requirements of the bidding document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding document, it shall be rejected by the employer and may not be subsequently made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission. However, the employer may request any bidder to clarify its bid according to the procedures set out in ITB 27. Responsiveness determination is based upon a detailed technical review according to the details given below.

Technical Review for Responsiveness Determination:

Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal of Bid. The bidder shall furnish a technical offer including a statement of work methods, equipment, personnel, schedule, and other information as stipulated in Section V Bidding Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the bidder's bid to meet the work requirements and the completion time including environmental and social and safety requirements.

Assessment of adequacy / quality of the technical proposal of the bid. Review of the bidder's technical offer will include an assessment of the bidder's proposed technical method and approach and its consistency with the environmental and social requirement of the employer as documented in the specifications/works requirements Section VIII. The employer will also

evaluate the adequacy of the bidder's program (construction schedule) and its ability to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract.

The required key contractor personnel profile and years of experience are listed in the table below:

SI. No.	Title	Years of General Construction Experience	Years of Specific Construction Experience
1	Project Site Manager	5	5
2	Project Engineer	3	3
3	Environmental & Social Specialist	3	3
4	Site Engineer	3	3
5	Health and Safety Specialist	3	3

The required main/ key contractor equipment, production capacity and year of manufacture are listed in the table below:

SI. No.	Equipment Description	Capacity (Minimum)	Earliest Year of
			Manufacture
1	Road Roller	8 TPH	2015
2	Truck/Tripper	4 CUM	2015
3	207 pickup truck	2 CUM	2015
4	Hot mix plant	1 TPH	2015
5	Air compressor	3 HP	2015
6	Sprayer/Distributor	200 L/h	2015
7	Vibrator	2 HP	2015
8	Mixer	500 ltr	2015
9	Generator	2 KVA	2015

[The bidder shall fill the required forms for key personnel and equipment included in Section V-Bidding Forms].

B. Financial Evaluation Criteria.

<u>B1. Price-Related Criteria.</u> This evaluation is conducted to determine the evaluated bid price of each technically responsive bid in accordance with the process and criteria detailed below. Only price and price-related criteria shall are considered at this stage of the evaluation. The "evaluated bid price" shall be the bid price adjusted as follows:

- The evaluated bid price excludes provisional sums, but includes daywork items, where priced competitively;
- The evaluated bid price does not include the estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the GCC, applied over the period of execution of the contract;
- The evaluated bid price does not include the estimated effect of the price adjustment to rates due to extensions of the bid validity period in accordance with ITB 18;
- The evaluated bid price includes adjustment for correction of arithmetical errors, omissions, clarifications, etc., in accordance with ITB 29; and
- The evaluated bid price includes adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 24.5.
- The evaluation is then conducted to determine the evaluated bid price of each bid using the additional criteria specified below:
- The "evaluated bid price" shall be the bid price adjusted as above and then the Employer will apply the following price evaluation criteria: [Select appropriate options from the below]
- Alternative Completion Times, if permitted under ITB 16.2, will be evaluated as follows:

[Not Applicable]

• **Payment Deviations** (against faster processing of payments by the employer to the contractor or against a higher advance payment, if acceptable to the employer) will be evaluated as follows:

[Not Applicable]

• After all above, the employer will convert the evaluated bid price to a single currency in accordance with ITB 17.

In case the technical proposal of the bidder is evaluated on pass/fail (responsive/nonresponsive basis) then the bidder with the lowest evaluated cost based on above-mentioned price criteria shall be the one offering the best value for money and is to be recommended for award, subject to post-qualification.

In the case of Multiple Contracts/Lots, bids will be evaluated as follows:

Award criteria for multiple contracts:

Bidders have the option to bid for any one or more lots. Bids will be evaluated lot-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined lots. The contract(s) will be awarded to the bidder or bidders offering the overall lowest evaluated cost to the employer for combined lots, subject to the selected bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for the lot or combination of lots as the case may be for which they were prequalified.

In case technical merit points are attached to the quality of the bidder's technical proposal then the bid with the best value for money shall be the one that scores the highest combined technical and price merit points (typically minimum of 90 points for bid price and a maximum of 10 points for the quality of the contents of the technical proposal).

C. Bidder's Qualification (Postqualification)

<u>C1 Qualification Review.</u> This process will be conducted to determine if the bidder who submitted the bid with the best value for money satisfies the qualification requirements as listed in ITB 15.1(e). The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the bidder's qualifications submitted by the bidder as requested in Section V, Bidding Forms, plus the bidder's record of past performance and a review of references and any other source at the employer's discretion. All qualification requirements shall be considered on a pass/fail basis. An affirmative determination of qualification shall be a prerequisite for award of the contract to a bidder.

<u>C2. References and Past Performance Review.</u> The bidder's performance on earlier contracts will be considered in determining if the bidder is qualified for award of the contract. The employer reserves the right to check the performance references provided by the bidder or to use any other source at the employer's discretion.

Section V. Bidding Forms

Table of Contents

Section V (A). Contractor's Letter of Bid	33
Section V (B). Qualification Information (to be filled by the Bidder)	36
Section V (C). Bid Security Format	38
Section V (D). Bid Securing Declaration Form	40
Section V (E). Technical Proposal Documents to be Submitted by the Bidder	42

Section V (A). Contractor's Letter of Bid

The bidder shall fill in and submit this bid form with the bid.

[Bidders letterhead paper]

To : The Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM

Address: Basement-I, ZIDCO Building, MINECO, Khatla, Aizawl, Mizoram

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- 1. We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including addenda issued thereto in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.
- 2. We offer to execute the *[Rehabilitation of Agriculture Link Roads]* in accordance with Section VIII Specifications, Section IX Drawings, Section X Bill of Quantities and the general and specific conditions of contract.
- 3. The total price of our bid, excluding any discounts offered in item 5 below is: *[insert the total bid price in words and figures, including the various amounts and respective currencies]*.
- 4. The advance payment required is: [insert advance payment amount required not to exceed the provision in ITB sub-clause 36.1].
- 5. The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:
 - a. Discounts: If our bid is accepted, the following discounts shall apply. [Specify in detail each discount offered.]
 - b. Methodology of application of the discounts: The discounts shall be applied using the following: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discount.]
- 6. Our bid shall be valid from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with ITB sub-clause 22.1, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.
- 7. If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with GCC clause 37 and as described in ITB clause 35 for the due performance of the contract.

[date]

- 8. We, including any subcontractors or sub-suppliers for any part of the contract, have nationalities from eligible countries [Insert the nationality of the bidder, including that of all parties that comprise the bidder, if the bidder is a joint venture, and the nationality of each subcontractor and supplier].
- 9. We have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB clause 7 [Insert, if needed: ", other than listed below."] [If listing one or more conflicts of interest, insert: "We propose the following mitigations for our conflicts of interest: [Insert description of conflict of interest, and proposed mitigations.]"]
- 10. Our firm, its associates, including any subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the contract, has not been declared ineligible by the Fund or by the employer, or under the laws or official regulations of the employer's country, in accordance with ITB clause 7 and has not been subject to administrative sanctions, criminal convictions or temporary suspensions beyond those declared in paragraph 11 of this letter of bid.
- 11. The following criminal convictions, administrative sanctions (including debarments) and/or temporary suspensions have been imposed on our firm and/or any of its directors, partners, proprietors, key personnel, agents, sub-consultants, sub-contractors, consortium and joint venture partners:

Nature of the measure (i.e., criminal conviction, administrative sanction or temporary suspension)	Imposed by	Name of party convicted, sanctioned or suspended (and relationship to consultant)	Grounds for the measure (i.e., fraud in procurement or corruption in contract execution)	Date and time (duration) of measure

If no criminal convictions, administrative sanctions or temporary suspensions have been imposed, indicate "none".

- 12. We acknowledge notice of the IFAD Revised Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations. We have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf has engaged in any prohibited practices described in ITB clause 3. As part of this, we certify that:
 - a. The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other offeror or competitor relating to:
 - i. Those prices;
 - ii. The intention to submit an offer; or
 - iii. The methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered.

- b. The prices in this offer have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by us, directly or indirectly, to any other offeror or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a negotiated solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
- c. No attempt has been made or will be made by us to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit an offer for the purpose of restricting competition.
- 13. We acknowledge notice of the IFAD Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse. We certify that no person acting for us or on our behalf has engaged in any harassment, exploitation or abuse described in ITB clause 4.
- 14. The following commissions, gratuities, or fees have been paid or are to be paid with respect to the bid process or execution of the contract: [Insert complete name of each recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity.]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount

[if non has been paid or is it to be paid, indicate "none"]

14. We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed.

15. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive.

Authorised signatory: Names and title of signatory: Name of bidder: Address: Contact details (tel & email):

Section V (B). Qualification Information (to be filled by the Bidder)

Notes on form of Qualification Information

The information to be filled in by bidders in the following pages will be used for purposes of post-qualification as provided for in the Instruction to Bidders. This information will not be incorporated in the contract.

- 1. Individual bidders or individual members of joint venture
 - 1.1. Constitution or legal status of bidder [attach copy]

Place of registration:

Principal place of business:

1.2. Work performed as prime contractor on works of a similar nature and volume of the last two years. Also list details of work under way or committed, including expected completion date.

Project name and country	Name of client and contact person	Type of work performed and year of completion	Value of contract

1.3. Major items of contractor's equipment proposed for carrying out the works. The bidder must list the equipment below and must also fill the relevant forms of the technical proposal.

Item of Equipment	Description, make, and age (years)	Condition (new, good, poor) and number available	Owned, leased (from whom?), or to be purchased (from whom?)
[etc.]			

1.4. Qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the contract. The bidder must list the key staff below and must also fill the relevant forms of the technical proposal-CV forms.

Position	Name	Years of experience (general)	Years of experience in proposed position

1.5. Proposed subcontracts and firms involved. The bidder must list the names and details as in the table below about its proposed subcontractors.

Sections of the works	Value of subcontract	Subcontractor (name and address)	Experience in similar workl
[etc.]			

1.6. Information on current litigation in which the bidder is involved. The bidder must list the names of contracts and details as in the table below.

Other party	Cause of dispute	Amount involved

1.7. Proposed program (work method and schedule) descriptions, drawings, and charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the bidding documents must be attached to the bidder's technical proposal.

Section V (C). Bid Security Format

Whereas, *[name of bidder]* (hereinafter called "the bidder") has submitted his bid dated *[date]* for the Construction of *Agriculture Link Roads, Ref: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2* (hereinafter called "the bid").

Know all people by these presents that We [name of bank] of [name of country] having our registered office at [address] (hereinafter called "the bank") are bound unto [name of employer] (hereinafter called "the employer") in the sum of [amount]³ for which payment well and truly to be made to the said employer, the bank binds itself, its successors, and assigns by these presents.

Sealed with the common seal of the said bank this [day] day of [month], [year]. The conditions of this obligation are:

- 1. If, after bid opening, the bidder withdraws his bid during the period of bid validity specified in the form of bid; or
- 2. If the bidder having been notified of the acceptance of his bid by the employer during the period of bid validity:
 - a. Fails or refuses to execute the form of agreement in accordance with the Instructions to bidders, if required; or
 - b. Fails or refuses to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the instruction to bidders; or
 - c. Does not accept the correction of the bid price pursuant to clause 24,

We undertake to pay to the employer up to the above amount upon receipt of his first written demand, without the employer's having to substantiate his demand, provided that in his demand the employer will note that the amount claimed by him is due to him owing to the occurrence of one or any of the three conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This guarantee will remain in force up to and including *[date]* the date 28 days after the deadline for submission of bids as stated in the Instructions to bidders or as it may be extended by the employer, notice of which extension(s) to the bank is hereby waived. Any demand in respect of this guarantee should reach the bank not later than the above date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement requirement of Article 15(a) is hereby excluded and as may otherwise be stated above.

³The bidder should insert the amount of the guarantee in words and figures This figure should be the same as shown in clause 14.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.

Witness_____Seal____

[Signature, name, and address]

Section V (D). Bid Securing Declaration Form

[The bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [date (as day, month and year)] Bid No.: [number of RFB process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this alternatives are permitted and this bid for an alternative]

To: The Chief Executive Officer, SCRAM & State Project Director, FOCUS-Mizoram

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a bid-securing declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding or submitting proposals in any contract with the employer for the period of time of *[number of months or years]* starting on *[date]*, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- a. Have withdrawn our bid during the period of bid validity specified in the letter of bid; or
- b. Having been notified of the acceptance of our bid by the employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to sign the contract; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the performance security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this bid securing declaration shall expire if we are not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our bid.

Name of the bidder*_____

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the bid on behalf of the bidder**_____

Title of the person signing the bid______Signature of the person named above______Date signed ______, ____

*: In the case of the bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the joint venture as bidder

**: Person signing the bid shall have the power of attorney given by the bidder attached to the bid

[Note: In case of a joint venture, the bid-securing declaration must be in the name of all members to the joint venture that submits the bid.]

Section V (E). Technical Proposal Documents to be Submitted by the Bidder

- Key Personnel Schedule (Resume and Declaration Key Personnel) as required by the Employer in Section IV-Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.

- Contractor's Equipment as required by the Employer in Section IV-Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.

- Site Organization
- Method Statement including ES Management Strategies and Implementation Plans
- Mobilization Schedule
- Construction Schedule
- Code of Conduct of Contractor's Personnel

Key Personnel Schedule

Bidders should provide the names and details of the suitably qualified key personnel to perform the contract. The data on their experience should be supplied using the form PER-2 below for each candidate.

Key Personnel

1.	Title of position: Project Site Manager		
	Name of candidate:		
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]	
	Time commitment for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]	
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]	
2.	Title of position: Pro	ject Engineer	
	Name of candidate:		
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]	
	Time commitment for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]	
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]	
3.	Title of position: Env	rironmental & Social Specialist	
	Name of candidate:		
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]	
	Time commitment for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]	
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]	
4.	Title of position: Site	Engineer	
	Name of candidate:		

	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]
	Time commitment for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]
5.	Title of position: Health and Safety Specialist	
	Name of candidate:	
	Name of candidate: Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]
	Duration of	

Resume and Declaration Key Personnel

Name of bidder

Position [#1]: [title of position from Form PER-1]				
Personnel information	Name:		Date of birth:	
	Address:		E-mail:	
	Professional qualifications			
	Academic qualifications			
	Language proficiency: [language and levels of speaking, reading, and writing skills]			
details				
	Address of employer:			
	Telephone	Contact	(manager / personnel officer):	
	Fax:			
	Job title:	Years w	ith present employers:	

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project	Role	Duration of involvement	Relevant experience
[main project details]	[role and responsibilities on the project]	[time in role]	[describe the experience relevant to this position]

Declaration

I, the undersigned key personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information contained in this form PER-2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for this position as provided in the bid:

Commitment	Details
Commitment to duration of contract:	[insert period (start and end dates) for which this Key Personnel is available to work on this contract]
Time commitment:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that this Key Personnel will be engaged]

I understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this form may:

- a. Be taken into consideration during bid evaluation;
- b. My disqualification from participating in the bid;
- c. My dismissal from the contract.

Name of key personnel: [insert name]

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the bidder:

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year):

Contractor's Equipment

The bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A separate form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the bidder. The bidder shall provide all the information requested below, to the extent possible. Fields with asterisk (*) shall be used for evaluation.

Type of Equipment*			
Equipment Information	Name of manufacturer,	Model and power rating	
	Capacity*	Year of manufacture*	
Current Status	Current location		
	Details of current commitments		
Source	Indicate source of the equipment	Leased	

The following information shall be provided only for equipment not owned by the bidder.

Owner	Name of owner		
	Address of owner		
	Telephone	Contact name and title	
	Fax	Telex	
Agreements	Details of rental / lease / manufacture a	greements specific to the project	

Site Organization

[insert Site Organization information]

Method Statement

[insert Method Statement]

In developing its Method Statement, the bidder shall have regard to the environmental and social (ES) provisions of the contract including those as may be more fully described in the specifications (works requirements) in Section X.

The technical proposal must all present the bidder's health and safety plans during execution of the works.

Mobilization Schedule

[insert Mobilization Schedule]

Construction Schedule

[insert Construction Schedule]

Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel Form

Note to the bidder: The minimum content of the code of conduct form as set out by the employer shall not be substantially modified. However, the bidder may add requirements as appropriate, including to take into account contract-specific issues/risks. The bidder shall initial and submit the code of conduct form as part of its bid.

Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel

We are the contractor, *[enter name of contractor]*. We have signed a contract with *[enter name of employer]* for *[enter description of the works]*. These works will be carried out at *[enter the Site and other locations where the works will be carried out]*. Our contract requires us to implement measures to address environmental and social risks related to the works, including the risks of sexual exploitation, sexual abuse and sexual harassment.

This code of conduct is part of our measures to deal with environmental and social risks related to the works. It applies to all our staff, laborers and other employees at the works site or other places where the works are being carried out. It also applies to the personnel of each subcontractor and any other personnel assisting us in the execution of the works. All such persons are referred to as "contractor's personnel" and are subject to this code of conduct.

This code of conduct identifies the behavior that we require from all contractor's personnel.

Our workplace is an environment where unsafe, offensive, abusive or violent behavior will not be tolerated and where all persons should feel comfortable raising issues or concerns without fear of retaliation.

Required Conduct

Contractor's Personnel shall:

- 1. Carry out his/her duties competently and diligently;
- 2. Comply with this code of conduct and all applicable laws, regulations and other requirements, including requirements to protect the health, safety and well-being of other contractor's personnel and any other person;
- 3. Maintain a safe working environment including by:
 - a. Ensuring that workplaces, machinery, equipment and processes under each person's control are safe and without risk to health;
 - b. Wearing required personal protective equipment;
 - c. Using appropriate measures relating to chemical, physical and biological substances and agents; and
 - d. Following applicable emergency operating procedures.
- 4. Report work situations that he/she believes are not safe or healthy and remove himself/herself from a work situation which he/she reasonably believes presents an imminent and serious danger to his/her life or health;

- 5. Treat other people with respect, and not discriminate against specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers or children;
- 6. Not engage in sexual harassment, which means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with other contractor's or employer's personnel;
- 7. Not engage in sexual exploitation, which means any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another;
- 8. Not engage in sexual abuse, which means the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions;
- 9. Not engage in any form of sexual activity with individuals under the age of 18, except in case of pre-existing marriage;
- 10. Complete relevant training courses that will be provided related to the environmental and social aspects of the contract, including on health and safety matters, and Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA), and Sexual Harassment (SH);
- 11. Report violations of this code of conduct; and
- 12. Not retaliate against any person who reports violations of this code of conduct, whether to us or the employer, or who makes use of the grievance mechanism for contractor's personnel or the project's Grievance Redress Mechanism.

Raising Concerns

If any person observes behavior that he/she believes may represent a violation of this code of conduct, or that otherwise concerns him/her, he/she should raise the issue promptly. This can be done in either of the following ways:

- 1. Contact [enter name of the contractor's social expert with relevant experience in handling gender-based violence, or if such person is not required under the contract, another individual designated by the contractor to handle these matters] in writing at this address [] or by telephone at [] or in person at []; or
- 2. Call [] to reach the contractor's hotline (if any) and leave a message.

The person's identity will be kept confidential, unless reporting of allegations is mandated by the country law. Anonymous complaints or allegations may also be submitted and will be given all due and appropriate consideration. We take seriously all reports of possible misconduct and will investigate and take appropriate action. We will provide warm referrals to service providers that may help support the person who experienced the alleged incident, as appropriate.

There will be no retaliation against any person who raises a concern in good faith about any behavior prohibited by this code of conduct. Such retaliation would be a violation of this code of conduct.

Consequences of violating the code of conduct

Any violation of this code of conduct by contractor's personnel may result in serious consequences, up to and including termination and possible referral to legal authorities.

For contractor's personnel:

I have received a copy of this code of conduct written in a language that I comprehend. I understand that if I have any questions about this code of conduct, I can contact *[enter name of contractor's contact person with relevant experience]* requesting an explanation.

Name of contractor's personnel: [insert name]	
Signature:	
Date: (day month year):	
Countersignature of authorized representative of the contractor:	

Countersignature of authorized representative of the contractor: Signature: _____ Date: (day month year): _____

Attachment 1: Behaviors constituting Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and behaviors constituting Sexual Harassment (SH)

Attachment 1 to the Code of Conduct

Behaviors Constituting Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and behaviors Constituting Sexual Harassment (SH)

The following non-exhaustive list is intended to illustrate types of prohibited behaviors:

- 1. Examples of sexual exploitation and abuse include, but are not limited to:
 - A contractor's personnel tells a member of the community that he/she can get them jobs related to the work site (e.g. cooking and cleaning) in exchange for sex.
 - A contractor's personnel that is connecting electricity input to households says that he can connect women headed households to the grid in exchange for sex.
 - A contractor's personnel rapes, or otherwise sexually assaults a member of the community.
 - A contractor's personnel denies a person access to the site unless he/she performs a sexual favor.
 - A contractor's personnel tells a person applying for employment under the contract that he/she will only hire him/her if he/she has sex with him/her.
- 2. Examples of sexual harassment in a work context
 - Contractor's personnel comment on the appearance of another contractor's personnel (either positive or negative) and sexual desirability.
 - When a contractor's personnel complains about comments made by another contractor's personnel on his/her appearance, the other contractor's personnel comment that he/she is "asking for it" because of how he/she dresses.
 - Unwelcome touching of a contractor's or employer's personnel by another contractor's personnel.
 - A contractor's personnel tells another contractor's personnel that he/she will get him/her a salary raise, or promotion if he/she sends him/her naked photographs of himself/herself.

Section VI. General Conditions of Contract

Section VI. General Conditions of Contract

1.	Definitions	. 59
2.	Language and Law	. 61
3.	Communication	. 61
4.	Prohibited Practices	. 61
5.	Prohibition of Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse	. 64
6.	SECAP	. 65
7.	Sub-contracting and other contractors	
8.	Personnel and Labour Requirements	. 65
9.	Contractor's and Employer's Risks	. 66
10.	Insurance	. 66
11.	Contractor to construct the works	
12.	The works to be completed by the completion date	. 67
13.	Safety	
14.	Program	
15.	Extension of the completion date	
16.	Delays ordered by the project manager	. 68
17.	Early warning	. 68
18.	Correction of defects	. 68
19.	Uncorrected defects	
20.	Bill of quantities	. 69
21.	Changes in the quantities	. 69
22.	Payment certificates	. 69
23.	Payments	. 70
24.	Compensation events	. 70
25.	Тах	. 70
26.	Liquidated damages	. 71
27.	Advance payments	. 71
28.	Retention money	. 71
29.	Dayworks	. 72
30.	Cost of repairs	. 72
31.	Completion and taking over	. 72

32.	Final account	72
	Termination action	
	Payment upon termination	
	Property	
36.	Release from performance	. 74
37.	Resolution of disputes	74
38.	Performance security	74

General Conditions of Contract

1. Definitions 1.1 Boldface type is used to identify defined terms.

Activity schedule means the priced and completed activity schedule forming part of the bid for a lump sum contract.

Bill of quantities means the priced and completed bill of quantities forming part of the bid for a unit rate contract.

Compensation events are those defined in clause 24 hereunder.

The completion date is the date of completion of the works as certified by the project manager, in accordance with sub-clause 31.

The contract is the contract between the employer and the contractor to execute, complete, and maintain the works. The name and identification number of the contract is given in the SCC.

The contractor is the person or corporate body whose bid to carry out the works has been accepted by the employer.

The **contractor's bid** is the letter of bid and priced bill of quantities or priced activity schedule submitted by the contractor to the employer.

The **contract price** is the price stated in the letter of acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the contract.

Dayworks are additional, varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the contractor's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated materials and plant.

Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.

A **defect** is any part of the works not completed in accordance with the contract.

The **defects liability period** is the period named in the SCC and calculated from the completion date.

Drawings include calculations and other information provided or approved by the employer for the execution of the contract.

The **employer**, as specified in the SCC, is the party who employs the contractor to carry out the works. The name of the employer's representative authorized to deal with the contractor is also given in the SCC.

The **employer's country** is the country in which the employer entity legally resides and operates from, as named in the SCC.

Equipment is the contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the site to construct the works.

The Fund or **IFAD** means the International Fund for Agricultural Development.

GCC means the general conditions of contract contained in this section.

The **initial contract price** is the contract price listed in the employer's letter of acceptance.

Materials are all supplies, plant (electro-mechanical machinery) and materials including consumables, used by the contractor for incorporation in the works.

The **project manager** is the person named in the SCC (or any other competent person appointed by the employer and notified to the contractor, to act on behalf of the employer) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the works and administering the contract

The **required completion date** is the date on which it is required that the contractor shall complete the works. The required completion date is specified in the SCC. The completion date may be revised only by the employer by issuing an extension of time or an acceleration order.

SCC means the special conditions of contract.

The site is the area defined as such in the SCC.

Specification means the specification of the works included in the contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the employer.

The **start date** is given in the SCC. It is the latest date when the contractor shall commence execution of the works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the site possession dates.

A **subcontractor** is a person or corporate body who has a contract with the contractor to carry out a part of the work in the contract, which includes work on the site.

Temporary works are works designed, constructed, installed and removed by the contractor that are needed for construction or installation of the works.

A **variation** is an instruction given by the project manager with the approval of the employer which varies the original work requirement or specifications.

The **works** are what the contract requires the contractor to construct, install, and turn over to the employer, as defined in the SCC.

SECAP means IFAD's Environmental, Social and Climate Assessment Procedures.

1.2 This shall be a "unit price contract based on priced bill of quantities" or a "lump sum contract" based on priced activity schedule", as specified in the SCC.

- **2. Language and Law** 2.1 The language of the contract and the law governing the contract are as provided in the SCC.
- **3. Communication 3.1** Communications between parties that are referred to in these Conditions shall be effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is delivered.
- 4. Prohibited Practices

4.1 The Fund requires that all beneficiaries of IFAD funding, including the employer and any bidders, implementing partners, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers, contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, sub-consultants, and any of their agents (whether declared or not) and personnel observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts, and comply with IFAD's Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations, revised on 12 December 2018 (EB 2018/125/R.6, hereinafter "IFAD's Anti-Corruption Policy").

4.2 For the purposes of these provisions, and consistent with IFAD's Anticorruption Policy, the terms set forth below are defined as follows, and sometimes referred to collectively as "prohibited practices":

- (a) "Corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value in order to improperly influence the actions of another party;
- (b) "Fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party in order to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (c) "Collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including improperly influencing the actions of another party;
- (d) "Coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of any party, to improperly influence the actions of that or another party;
- (e) "Obstructive practice" is (i) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing evidence that may be material to an investigation by the Fund or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an investigation by the Fund; (ii) threatening, harassing or intimidating any party in order to prevent that party from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to an investigation by the Fund or from pursuing such an investigation; and/or (iii) the commission of any act intended to materially impede the exercise of the Fund's contractual rights of audit, inspection and access to information.

4.3 The Fund will deny approval of a proposed contract award if it determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, or any of its personnel or agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers and/or any of their personnel or agents, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in any of the prohibited practices in connection with an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed activity or operation, including in competing for the contract.

4.4 In accordance with IFAD's Anticorruption Policy, the Fund has the right to sanction firms and individuals, including by declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to participate in any IFAD-financed and/or IFADmanaged activity or operation. This may include ineligibility to: (i) be awarded or otherwise benefit from any IFAD-financed contract, financially or in any other manner; (ii) be a nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer, supplier, sub-supplier, agent or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded an IFAD-financed contract; and (iii) receive the proceeds of any loan or grant provided by the Fund.⁴ The Fund also has the right to unilaterally recognize debarments by any of the International Financial Institutions that are members to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions if such debarments meet the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions.

4.5 In addition, the Fund has the right to, at any time, declare a misprocurement and/or the ineligibility of any expenditures associated with a procurement process or contract if it determines that prohibited practices occurred in connection with this procurement process or contract and that the borrower/recipient has not taken timely and appropriate action, satisfactory to the Fund, to address such practices when they occur.

4.6 Bidders, suppliers, consultants, contractors, and their subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents and personnel, are required to fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the Fund into possible prohibited practices, including by making personnel available for interviews and by providing full access to any and all accounts, premises, documents and records (including electronic records) relating to the relevant IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity and to have such accounts, premises, records and documents audited and/or inspected by auditors and/or investigators appointed by the Fund.

4.7 The bidder is obliged to disclose relevant prior sanctions and criminal convictions and any commissions or fees paid or are to be paid to any agents or other party in connection with this procurement process or the execution of the contract.

4.8 The bidder shall keep all records and documents, including electronic records, relating to this procurement process available for a minimum of three (3) years after notification of

⁴ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

completion of the process or, in case the bidder is awarded the contract, execution of the contract.

5. Prohibition of Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse

5.1 The Fund requires that all beneficiaries of IFAD Funding, including the employer and any bidders, implementing partners, service providers, suppliers, sub-suppliers, contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, sub-consultants, and any of their agents (whether declared or not) and personnel comply with IFAD's Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation and Abuse. For the purpose of this provision, and consistent with IFAD's Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual Harassment, Sexu

- (a) Sexual harassment means "any unwelcome sexual advance, request for sexual favour or other verbal, nonverbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that unreasonably interferes with work, alters or is made a condition of employment, or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.
- (b) Sexual exploitation and abuse means "any actual or attempted abuse of a position of vulnerability, differential power, or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of others (sexual exploitation); the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions (sexual abuse)".

5.2 Employers, suppliers and bidders shall take all appropriate measures to prevent and prohibit sexual harassment and sexual exploitation and abuse on the part of their personnel and subcontractors or anyone else directly or indirectly employed by them or any of subcontractors in the performance of the contract. Contractors, suppliers and bidders shall immediately report to the employer or IFAD any incidents of sexual harassment and sexual exploitation and abuse arising out of or in connection with the performance of the contract or prior to its execution, including convictions, disciplinary measures, sanctions or investigations. The employer may take appropriate measures, including the termination of the contract, on the basis of proven acts of sexual harassment, sexual exploitation and abuse arising out of or in connection with the performance of the contract.

5.3 The bidder or subcontractor or supplier is required to disclose any relevant prior sanctions, convictions, disciplinary measures or criminal records.

- 6. SECAP 6.1 This contract shall be implemented in a manner consistent with IFAD's Social, Environmental and Climate Assessment Procedures (SECAP), available on <u>https://www.ifad.org/en/secap</u>.
- 7. Sub-contracting and other contractors
 7.1 The contractor may subcontract with the approval of the project manager, but may not assign the contract without approval of the employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the contractor's obligations. Not more than the percentage of the works value indicated in the SCC may be sub-contracted to registered contractors. The contractor shall cooperate and share the site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the employer.
- 8. Personnel and Labour Requirements
 8.1 The contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the schedule of key personnel, referred to in the SCC, to carry out the functions stated in the schedule. Replacement of such personnel must be approved by the project manager. The project manager will approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their relevant qualifications and abilities are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the schedule.

8.2 If the project manager asks the contractor to remove a person who is a member of the contractor's staff or work force, stating valid reasons including breach of the code of conduct, the contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the site within 72 hours and has no further connection with the work in the contract.

8.3 The contractor shall provide and employ on the site for the execution of the works such skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled labor as is necessary for the proper and timely execution of the contract. The contractor shall provide the contractor's personnel information and documentation that are clear and understandable regarding their terms and conditions of employment. The information and documentation shall set out their rights under relevant labor laws applicable to the contractor's personnel (which will include all ILO core labour standards: prohibition of child labour and worst forms of child labour, forced labour, non-discrimination, freedom of association and collective bargaining), including their rights related to hours of work, wages, overtime, compensation and benefits, as well as

those arising from any requirements in the specifications. The contractor's personnel shall be informed when any material changes to their terms or conditions of employment occur.

9. Contractor's and Employer's Risks
 9.1 From the starting date until the defects liability certificate has been issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the works, materials, and equipment) which are not employer's risks are contractor's risks.

9.2 From the start date until the defects liability certificate has been issued, the following are employer's risks:

- (a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the works, plant, materials, and equipment), which are due to
 - Use or occupation of the site by the works or for the purpose of the works, which is the unavoidable result of the works or
 - (ii) Negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the employer or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the contractor.
- (b) The risk of damage to the works, plant, materials, and equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the employer or in the employer's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the country where the works are to be executed.

9.3 From the completion date until the defects liability certificate has been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the works, plant, and materials is an employer's risk except loss or damage due to

- (a) A defect which existed on the completion date,
- (b) An event occurring before the completion date, which was not itself an employer's risk, or
- (c) The activities of the contractor on the site after the completion date.
- **10. Insurance** 10.1 The contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the employer and the contractor, insurance cover from the start date to the end of the defects liability period, in the amounts stated in

the SCC, for the following events which are due to the contractor's risks:

- (a) Loss of or damage to the works, equipment and materials;
- (b) Loss of or damage to property (except the works, materials and equipment) in connection with the contract; and
- (c) Personal injury or death and third-party liability.

10.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the contractor to the project manager for approval within 15 days of receipt by the contractor of the employer's letter of acceptance. All such insurance shall provide for compensation required to rectify the loss or damage incurred. If the contractor fails to provide the required certificates, the contract shall be considered as annulled. However, the employer at its discretion may decide to extend the period for submission of insurance certificates or take out the insurance and deduct the cost of premiums from the contractor's earnings.

10.3 Alterations to the terms of an insurance shall not be made without the approval of the employer.

11.1 The contractor shall construct and install the works in accordance with the specifications and drawings.

12.1 The contractor shall be given access to the site by the site possession date indicated in the SCC. The contractor shall commence execution of the works by the start date indicated in the SCC and shall carry out the works in accordance with the program submitted by the contractor, as updated with the approval of the project manager, and complete them by the required completion date.

13.1 The contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the site and shall appoint a health and safety officer if so prescribed in the schedule of the contractor's key personnel.

13.2 The contractor shall report immediately to the project manager any health and safety incidents, accidents, injuries that require treatment and all fatalities.

- 11.Contractor to construct the works
- 12.The works to be completed by the completion date

13.Safety

14.Program	14.1 Within the time stated in the SCC, the contractor shall submit to the project manager for its no-objection a program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities for construction of the works. The contractor shall update the program at intervals no longer than the period stated in the SCC. The project manager's non-objection to the program shall not alter the contractor's obligations. The contractor may revise the program and submit it to the project manager again at any time. A revised program shall show the effect of variations and compensation events.
15.Extension of the completion date	15.1 The project manager shall extend the completion date if a compensation event occurs or a variation is issued which makes it impossible for completion to be achieved by the required date without the contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the contractor to incur additional cost.
16.Delays ordered by the project manager	16.1 The project manager may instruct the contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the works. Delays or suspension of work by the project manager which increase the contractor's costs shall be subject to equitable adjustments by the employer.
17.Early warning	17.1 The contractor shall inform the project manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the contract price or delay the execution of the works. The project manager may require the contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the contract price and completion date. The estimate shall be provided by the contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
	17.2 The contractor shall cooperate with the project manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the works and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the project manager.
18.Correction of defects	18.1 The project manager shall give notice to the contractor of any defects before the end of the defects liability period, which begins at completion, and is defined in the SCC. The defects liability period shall be extended for as long as defects remain to be corrected.

18.2 Every time notice of a defect is given, the contractor shall correct the notified defect within the length of time specified by the project manager in the aforementioned notice. 19.Uncorrected 19.1 If the contractor has not corrected a defect within the time defects specified in the project manager's notice, the project manager will assess the cost of having the defect corrected, and the contractor shall pay this amount, or the employer shall recuperate these amounts by deduction from the amounts due to the contractor. 20.Bill of quantities 20.1 The bill of quantities (in the case of a lump-sum contract this entire clause 20 shall be replaced with a new clause as indicated in the SCC) shall contain items for the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning of the works to be done by the contractor. 20.2 The bill of quantities is used to calculate the contract price. The contractor is paid for the quantity of the work actually done at the rate of the bill of quantities for each item. 21.Changes in the 21.1 If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the bill of quantities for the particular item by more quantities than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds 1 percent of the initial contract price, the project manager shall adjust the unit rate upwards or downwards for this item commensurate with the impact of the change on the contractor's cost. (For lump- sum contracts, this clause shall be substituted by a new clause as indicated in SCC). 22.Payment 22.1 The contractor shall submit to the project manager certificates monthly statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously. 22.2 The project manager shall check the contractor's executed work and certify the amount to be paid to the contractor. 22.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the project manager. 22.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of the quantities of the items in the bill of quantities completed. (For lump sum contracts, this clause shall be substituted by a new clause as indicated in the SCC). 22.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of variations and compensation events.

23.Payments	23.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions of the advance payments and retention. The employer shall pay the contractor the amounts certified by the project manager within 45 days of the date of each certificate submitted by the contractor. If the employer makes a late payment, the contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made, up to the date when the late payment is made, at the rate of interest prevailing at the local banks for construction loans.
	23.2 Items of the works for which no rate or price has been entered in the bill of quantities shall not be paid for by the employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the contract.
24.Compensation	24.1 The following shall be compensation events:
events	(a) The employer does not give access to a part of the site by the site possession date stated in the SCC.
	(b) The project manager orders a delay or does not issue drawings, specifications, or instructions required for execution of works on time.
	(c) The project manager instructs the contractor to uncover or to carry out tests upon completed work, which is then found to have no defects.
	(d) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the employer cause delay or extra cost to the contractor.
	(e) The advance payment is delayed.
CX	(f) The project manager unreasonably delays issuing a certificate of completion.
	(g) Any other events as stipulated in the SCC.
	If such an event occurs, then the contract price shall be equitably adjusted.
25.Tax	25.1 The contractor is liable for all taxes in accordance with the laws of the employer's country. However, the project manager shall adjust the contract price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the contract and the date of the last completion

	certificate. The adjustment shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the contractor, provided such charges are already not reflected in the contract price.
26.Liquidated damages	26.1 The contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the employer at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the completion date is later than the required completion date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the ceiling amount defined in the SCC. The employer may deduct liquidated damages from any payments due to the contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the contractor's liabilities.
27.Advance payments	27.1 The employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor in the amounts stated in the SCC after the contractor has:
	 (i) Delivered to the site construction equipment and/or materials for initiating the works, and
	(ii) Submitted the advance payment guarantee.
	27.2 The contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for equipment, materials and other expenses required specifically for carrying out the works. The contractor shall demonstrate that the advance payment has been used in this way by supply of copies of invoices or other documents to the project manager.
	27.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the contractor. Full recovery of the advance payment shall be made by the time 75% of the value of the works have been certified for payment by the project manager.
28.Retention money	28.1 An amount, specified in the SCC, will be retained from each payment to the contractor as a safeguard for ensuring satisfactory performance of the work. This money will be paid out to the contractor upon fulfilment of the contractor's contractual obligations i.e. within 15 days of the issue by the project manager of the defects liability certificate. Subject to the approval by the employer, the retention money can be released to the contractor at the time of issue of the certificate of completion of the works against submission by the contractor of an unconditional bank guarantee covering the full amount of the retention money.

29.Dayworks	29.1 If applicable, the dayworks rates in the contractor's bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the project manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
	29.2 All work to be paid for as dayworks shall be recorded by the contractor on forms approved by the project manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the project manager within two days of the work being done.
	29.3 The contractor shall be paid for dayworks as work is performed subject to obtaining signed dayworks forms.
30.Cost of repairs	30.1 Loss or damage to the works or materials to be incorporated in the works between the start date and the end of the defects liability periods shall be remedied by the contractor at the contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the contractor's risks, acts or omissions.
31.Completion and taking over	31.1 The contractor shall request the project manager to issue a certificate of completion of the works, and the project manager will issue such a certificate when it determines that the works are satisfactorily completed. The employer shall take over the site and the works within seven days of the project manager's issuing of a certificate of completion.
32.Final account	32.1 The contractor shall supply the project manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the contractor considers payable under the contract before the end of the defects liability period. The project manager shall issue a defects liability certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the contractor within 45 days of receiving the contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the project manager shall issue within 30 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the final account is still unsatisfactory after is has been resubmitted, the project manager shall decide on the amount payable to the contractor and issue a payment certificate.
33. Termination action	33.1 The employer or the contractor may terminate the contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the contract.
	33.2 Fundamental breaches of contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
	(a) The contractor stops work for 21 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Program and the

stoppage has not been authorized by the project manager;

- (b) The project manager instructs the contractor to delay the progress of the works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 30 days and no agreement is reached on payments due contractor for cost of delay;
- (c) The employer or the contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
- (d) A payment certified by the project manager is not paid by the employer to the contractor within 60 days of the date of the project manager's certificate;
- (e) The project manager gives notice that failure to correct a particular defect is a fundamental breach of contract and the contractor fails to correct it within 30 days from the date of such notice issued by the project manager;
- (f) The contractor has delayed the completion of the works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as defined in the SCC.
- (g) The employer determines that the contractor, or any of its sub-contractors, sub-consultants, suppliers, personnel or any agent or affiliate of any of them has, directly or indirectly, engaged in prohibited practices pursuant to GCC 4.

33.3 When either party to the contract gives notice of a breach of contract to the project manager for a cause other those listed under sub-clause 33.2 above, the project manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.

33.4 Notwithstanding the above, the employer may terminate the contract for convenience by giving the contractor a thirty-day notice in writing.

33.5 If the contract is terminated, the contractor shall stop work immediately, make the site safe and secure, and leave the site within 15 days of the completion of the notice period.

34.1 If the contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of contract by the contractor, the project manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the

34.Payment upon termination

issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the SCC. Additional liquidated damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the employer exceeds any payment due to the contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the employer. 34.2 If the contract is terminated for the employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of contract by the employer, the project manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of equipment, repatriation of the contractor's personnel employed solely on the works, and the contractor's costs of protecting and securing the works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate. 35.1 All materials and construction equipment on the site, plant, 35.Property temporary works, and works shall be deemed to be the property of the employer if the contract is terminated because of the contractor's default. 36.Release from 36.1 If the contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by performance any other event entirely outside the control of either the employer or the contractor, the project manager shall certify that the contract has been frustrated. The contractor shall make the site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards for which an agreement has been reached. **37.Resolution of** 37.1 The employer and the contractor shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disputes disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the contract. If after thirty (30) days from the commencement of such informal negotiations, the employer and the contractor have been unable to resolve amicably a contract dispute, either party may require that the dispute be referred to arbitration in accordance with the law governing the contract. The place where arbitration will take place will be stated in the SCC. 38.Performance 38.1 The performance security shall be provided to the employer no later than the date specified in the letter of security acceptance and shall be issued in the amount specified in the SCC, in a form and by a bank acceptable to the employer, and denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the contract price is payable. The performance security

shall be valid until a date 28 days from the date of issue of the defects liability certificate.

Section VII. Specific Conditions of Contract (SCC)

GCC Clause Special Conditions of Contract				
SCC				
Insert in the SCC the following definitions:				
"Contract: The name and procurement number of the contract are: " <u>Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads- Ref. No: MZ/PMU/PP</u> 2021-22/W/2"				
"Defects liability period: the defects liability period is: 365 days				
"Employer: the employer is: "Society for Climate Resilient Agriculture in Mizoram (SCRAM)"				
The employer's country is: India				
"Required completion date: The intended completion date shall be: 120 days from award of contract.				
"Project manager: The project manager is: "R.K. NITHANGA, CEO & SPD, SCRAM-FOCUS, PMU Office, Aizawl, Mizoram"				
 "Site: the site is located at: 1. Thinglubul, Serchhip District 2. Mualkawi, Serchhip District 3. Lungzawl, Serchhip District and is defined in drawing Nos. <i>1, 2 & 3</i> attached." 				
"Start date: the start date shall be <u>[insert date]</u> "				
"Works: the works consist of: <i>"Road works, side-drain, cross-drain, retaining wall and culvert construction."</i>				
This contract shall be a unit priced contract based on priced bills of quantities				
The language of the contract is <i>English.</i> The governing law is the law of the employer's country.				
Maximum allowable percentage for sub-contracting is 15% of the value of the contract price/works.				

Special Conditions of Contract

0.4	
8.1	The schedule of key personnel are:
	1. Project Site Manager
	2. Project Engineer
	3. Environmental and social specialist
	4. Health and Safety Officer
	5. Site Engineer
10.1	The minimum insurance covers shall be (for each lot):
	(a) The minimum insurance cover for the loss of or damage to the works, equipment and materials shall be 110% of the value of the works, equipment and materials, with a maximum deductible for each insurance claim of INR 50000.00
	(b) The minimum insurance cover for loss of or damage to property (except the works, plant, materials and equipment) is <u>110% of</u> <u>the property value</u> with a maximum deductible of <u>INR 50000.00</u>
	(c) The minimum insurance cover for personal injury or death and third-party liability is as per the state government rules with no deductible.
12.1	The site possession date shall be
	[If the site is made available by section, the different dates or periods should be listed here.]
	The start date is: [insert date].
14.1	The period for submission of the program is <i>15</i> days from the date of signature of agreement. The period between the program updates is <i>50</i> days.
20	In the case of lump sum contracts, clause 20 shall be replaced by the following new clause as follows:
	Not Applicable
21.1	In the case of lump sum contracts, clause 21.1 shall be replaced by the following new clause 22.1 as follows: Not Applicable
22.4	In case of lump sum contracts, clause 22.4 is replaced as follows:
	(a) Not Applicable
24.1	The following are additional compensation events:
	The following are additional compensation events.

	(a) Lockdown imposted by the state government(b) Rainy season where heavy rainfall occurs
26.1	The liquidated damages for each section of the works is 0.2% of the final contract price per day. The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the works is 5% of the final contract price.
27.1	The advance payment will be 5 percent of the Initial contract price.
28.1	The amount of retention money will be 10% of each payment due to the contractor up to the maximum of 10% of the total contract amount.
34.1	The percentage to apply to the value of the works not completed, representing the employer's additional cost for completing the works is <i>10%.</i>
36.1	The place where arbitration shall take place is: <i>Aizawl</i> .
37.1	The performance security amount is 10% of the contract value in the form of "Unconditional Bank Guarantee" or "Irrevocable Letter of Credit" or "Bond".

Works Requirements

The works requirements include:

- (a) the Specifications (Section VIII)
- (b) the Drawings (Section IX)
- (c) the Bill of Quantities and Daywork Schedules.

Section VIII. Specifications

A. SPECIFICATION FOR BITUMINOUS MACADAM ROAD

MATERIALS:

1. BITUMEN

The bitumen shall be viscosity graded paving bitumen complying with Indian Standard Specification for paving bitumen, IS:73. The grade of bitumen to be used would depend upon the climatic conditions and the traffic. Guidelines for selection of viscosity grade of paving grade bitumen are given in Tables 1.

Table 1 Viscosity Graded (VG) bitumen and their General Applications

Viscosity Grade (VG)	General Applications	
VG-40 (40-60 penetration)	Use in highly stressed areas such as thos in intersections, near toll booths, and truc parking toll in lieu of old 30-4 penetration grade.	
Viscosity Grade (VG)	General Applications	
VG-30 (50-60 penetration)	Use of paving in most of India in lieu of old	
VG-30 (50-60 penetration)	Use of paving in most of India in lieu of old	
VG-20 (60-80 penetration)	Use in cold climatic, high altitude regions of	
VG-10 (80-100 penetration)	Use in spraying applications such as surface dressing and paving in very cold climatic region in lieu of old 80/10 penetration grade	

2. <u>COARSE AGGREGATE</u>:

The coarse aggregate shall consist of crushed rock, crushed gravel or other gravel or other hard material retained on 2.36mm sieve. It shall be clean, hard, durable and cubical shape, free from dust and soft organic and other deleterious substances. The aggregate shall satisfy and physical requirements specified in Table 2.

Property	Test Requirement		Test method
Cleanliness	Grain size analysis	Max. 5% passing	IS 2386 Part I
		0.075 micron	
Particle shape	Flakiness &	Max. 40%	IS 2386 Part I

	Elongation Index (combined)		
Strength *	Los Angeles Max. 40% Abrasion Value		IS 2386 Part IV
	Aggregate Impact Value	IS 2386 Part IV	
Durability	Soundness (Sodium or Magnesium), 5 cycles		
	Sodium Sulphate Max. 12%		IS 2386 Part V
	Magnesium Max. 18% Sulphate		IS 2386 Part V
Water absorption Water absorption		Max. 2%	IS 2386 Part III
Stripping **	Coating and Stripping of Bitumen	Min Coating 95%	IS 6241

Note:

* The coarse aggregate may satisfy either of the two strength tests.

** If the coarse aggregate fails this test, 2% hydrated lime shall be used in the mix.

Where crushed gravel is proposed for use as aggregate, not less than 90% by weight of the crushed material retained on 4.75 mm sieve shall have at least two fractured faces resulting from crushing operation.

3. FINE AGGREGATE:

Fine aggregate shall consist of crushed or naturally occurring mineral material, or a combination of two, passing 2.36 mm sieve and retained on 75 micron sieve. It shall be clean, hard, durable, free from dust and soft organic and other deleterious substances. The amount of rounded, natural sand in the total fine aggregate shall be limited to 10% if the BM is used within 100mm from the road surface and to 50% if the BM is used more than 100 mm below the road surface.

4. AGGREGATE GRADING AND BITUMEN CONTENT:

The combined grading of the coarse aggregate and fine aggregate, when tested in accordance with IS 2386 Part I, wet sieving method, shall conform to limits given in Table 3. The type and quantity of bitumen and appropriate thickness is also given in Table 3.

Grading	1	2
Nominal maximum aggregate size*	40 mm	19 mm
Layer thickness	80-100 mm 50-75 m	
IS Sieve size (mm)	Cumulative % by weight of total	
	aggregate passing	

45	100	
37.5	90-100	
26.5	75-100	100
19	-	90-100
13.2	35-61	56-88
4.75	13-22	16-36
2.36	4-19	4-19
0.3	2-10	2-10
0.075	0-8	0-8
Bitumen content **	3.3	3.4

* Nominal maximum aggregate size is one size larger than the first sieve, which retains more than 10% material.

** For regions where highest daily mean air temperature is 30^0 C or lower and lowest daily mean air temperature is -10^0 C or lower, the bitumen content may be increased by as much as 0.5%.

5. <u>SCREENING</u>:

The size and grading requirements for screening is given in the table 4.

Grading/Classificatio ns	Size of Screening	IS Sieve Designation	Percent by weight passing IS Sieve
		13.2 mm	100
А	13.2mm	11.2 mm	95-100
		5.6 mm	15-35
		180 micron	0-10
		11.2 mm	100
В	11.2mm	5.6 mm	90-100
		180 micron	15-35

6. WATER BOUND MACADAM(WBM) :

The size and grading requirements of Course Aggregates for Water Bound Macadam(WBM) is given in the table 5.

Grading No.	Size Range	IS Sieve Designation	Percent by weight passing
-------------	------------	-------------------------	------------------------------

		125 mm	100
		90 mm	90-100
1	90 mm to 45 mm	63 mm	25-60
		45 mm	0-15
		22.40 mm	0-5
		90 m	100
	2 63 mm to 45 mm	63 mm	90-100
2		53 mm	25-75
		45 mm	0-15
		22.40 mm	0-5
		63mm	100
		13.2 mm	95-100
3	53 mm to 22.4 mm	11.2 mm	65-90
		5.6 mm	0-10
		180 micron	0-5

7. <u>CONSTRUCTION</u>

- **7.1.1 Cleaning of the surface:** The surface shall be cleaned of all loos extraneous matter by means of mechanical broom, high-pressure air jet received from a compressor or any other approved equipment / method.
- **7.1.2 Filling up of potholes and sealing of cracks:** Any potholes and /or cracks shall be repaired and sealed.
- **7.1.3 profile corrective course:** Depending upon site requirement, profilecorrective course for correcting the existing pavement profile shall be laid either as a separate layer or as a composite layer with varying thickness. Where the maximum thickness of the profile corrective course is less than 40mm, the profile corrective course shall be laid as an integral part of the overlaying layer. In other cases the profile corrective course shall be constructed as a separate layer. When it is laid as a separate layer, type of material for the use as the profile corrective course may differ.
- **7.1.4 Prime Coat:** Prime Coat shall be as per IRC:16-2007 "Standard Specification and Code of Practice for Prime and Tack Coat".
- **7.1.5** Tack Coat: Tack Coat shall be as per IRC: 16-2007 "Standard Specification and Coat of Practice for Prime and Tack Coat".

7.2 <u>MIXING</u>

Bituminous macadam shall be prepared in a hot mix plant (HMP) of adequate capacity and capable of yielding a mix of proper and uniform quality with thoroughly coated aggregate. Essential features for HMP are given in **Annexure I**. The temperature range of bitumen and aggregate at the time of mixing for different grade and type of bitumen is given in Table 4. The difference in the temperature of

aggregate and bitumen shall not exceed 15⁰ C. In order to ensure uniform quality of mix the plan shall be calibrated from time to time.

7.3 TRANSPORTATION

Bituminous material shall be transported in clean insulted covered vehicles. An asphalt release agent such as soap or limewater, which does not adversely affect the bituminous mix, may be applied to the interior of the vehicle to prevent sticking and to facilitate discharge of the material.

7.4 LAYING

- 7.4.1 Weather and seasonal limitations: Bituminous macadam shall not be laid:
 - a) in presence of standing water on the surface,
 - b) when rain in imminent and during rains, fog or dust storm, c)

when the base /binder course is damp,

- d) when the air temperature on the surface on which it is to be laid is less than 10^0 C,
- (e) When the wind speed at any temperature exceed the 40 km/h at 2-meter height.
- **7.4.2 Preparation of the base:** Base shall be prepared by carrying out all or some of the of the operations as per Clause 6.1, depending upon the site conditions.
- **7.4.3 Spreading**: Bituminous mixture shall be spread, levelled and tamped. As soon as possible after arrival at site the asphalt mix shall be laid continuously. The method of supplying and laying shall be adjusted to ensure even and uniform flow of bituminous material across the screed, free from dragging, tearing and segregation.

The laying of bituminous macadam shall be completed before the mix temperature reaches the values specified in the Table 6.

Bitumen	Bitumen	Aggregat	Mixed	Laying	*Rolling
Viscosity	Temperatur	e	Material	Temperatur	Temperatur
Grad	е	Temperatur	Temperatur	е	е
VG-40	160-170	160-175	160-170	150 Min	100 Min
VG-30	150-165	150-170	150-165	140 Min	90 Min
VG-20	145-165	145-170	145-165	135 Min	85 Min
VG-10	140-160	140-165	140-160	130 Min	80 Min

* Rolling must be completed before the mat cools to these minimum temperatures

Bituminous material, with temperature greater than 145⁰C shall not be laid or deposited on bridge deck, waterproofing system unless precautions against the heat damage have been taken.

7.5 <u>COMPACTION</u>

- 7.5.1 Compaction shall commence as soon as possible after laying and shall be completed before the temperature falls below the range specified in Table 6. Rolling of the longitudinal joints shall be done immediately behind the paving operation. After this, the rolling shall commence at the edge and progress towards the centre longitudinally except at sections with unidirectional camber, where it shall progress from lower edge to upper edge parallel to centreline of the pavement.
- 7.5.2 All deficiencies in the surface after laying shall be made good by the attendant behind the paver, before initial rolling is commenced. The initial or breakdown rolling shall be done with an 8 to 10 tonnes dead weight or vibratory steel wheel roller. The intermediate rolling shall be done with 8 to 10 tonnes dead weight or vibratory roller with an amplitude 0.3mm to 0.8 mm and frequency between 30 to 50 hz. or with a pneumatic roller of 12 to 15 tones, with a tire pressure of at least 0.56 M Pa. The finished rolling shall be done with 6 to 8 tonnes smooth wheel roller .
- 7.5.3 The bitumen macadam shall be rolled in the longitudinal direction with the roller as close to the pave as possible. The overlap on successive passes should be at least one-third of the width of the rear roll or in the case of pneumatic wheeled rollers, at least the nominal width of 300mm. The roller should move at a speed of no more than 5 km/hour. The roller shall not be permitted to stand on pavement, which has not been fully compacted. All precautions shall be taken to prevent dropping of oil, grease, petrol or other foreign material on the pavement. The wheel of the rollers shall be dept moist with the water or spray system provided with the machine to prevent the mixture from adhering to the wheels. Minimum moisture to prevent adhesion between wheels and mixture shall be used and surplus water shall not be allowed to stand on the partially completed pavement.

7.6 ARRANGEMENT FOR TRAFFIC

It shall be ensured that the bituminous macadam surface is covered with the next pavement coarse within a maximum of 48 hours until which no traffic shall be applied. In case of delay, the course may be covered with the seal coat in accordance with the appropriate IRC standard prior to opening to traffic.

8. QUALITY CONTROL DURING CONSTRUCTION

The material supplied and the work shall conform to the specifications prescribed in the preceding Clauses. To ensure the quality the material and the works shall be subjected to tests described hereunder. The tests and minimum frequency for each test in indicated in the Table 7.

8.1 ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA

The acceptance criteria for testing material is given in the table 7.

SI	Test	Frequenc
1	Quality of bituminous binder	As per number of samples and tests per lot specified in IS 73
2	Aggregate impact value/Los Angles Abrasion value	One test per 50 m ³ of the aggregate
3	Flakiness & Elongation Index	One test per 50 m ³ of the aggregate
4	Soundness test (Sodium or Magnesium Sulphate test)	1 test for each method for each source and when ever there is change in the quality of aggregate
5	Water absorption aggregate	1 test for each source and when ever there is change in the quality of aggregate
6	Percent of fractured faces	When crushed gravel is used as aggregate one test per 50m ³ of aggregate
7	Mix grading	One set for individual constituent and mixed aggregate from dryer for each 400 tonnes of mix subject to minimum of two tests per day per plant
8	Stripping (IS:6241)	1 test for each mix design and whenever there is change in the source or quality of coarse aggregate
9	Temperature of binder in boiler, aggregate in dryer and mix at the time of laying and	At regular interval
10	Binder content	One set for each 400 tonnes of mix subject to minimum of two tests per day per plant
11	Rate of spread of mix material	At regular interval
12	Density of compacted layer	One test per 250m ³ area.

B. SPECIFICATIONS OF RETAINING WALL, CULVERT, SIDE DRAIN AND CROSS DRAIN

Construction Equipment

The following conditions regarding use of equipment in work shall be satisfied:

- 1) The Contractor shall have the required machines/equipment for all the construction works.
- 2) The contractor shall be required to give a trial run of the equipment for establishing their capability to achieve the laid down specifications and the tolerances to the satisfaction of the Engineer before commencement of the work.
- 3) All equipment provided shall be of proven efficiency and shall be operated and maintained at all times in a manner acceptable to the Engineer.

- 4) Plants, equipment and instruments provided shall have adequate sensitivity, facility for calibration to desired level and shall be robust.
- 5) Plants, equipment and instruments provided shall have adequate safety features and pollution control devices.
- 6) Plants, equipment and instruments provided shall be operated by skilled and qualified operators.
- 7) The Contractor shall make available stand by equipment and spare parts.
- 8) The Contractor shall also make available equipment for site quality control work as directed by Engineer.

Retaining Wall

The purpose is to retain the earth pressure and to prevent the earth from sliding. A retaining wall must have a weep hole provided on different places of the wall. The weep hole shall be have a slope of 1 in 10 and it shall be provided staring 15cm - 30 cm from the ground and shall be placed at 1m intervals. Stone masonry shall be used for the retaining wall. The face of the retaining wall shall have a slope of 1:4 and the inside is vertically straight. But if the soil foundation is unsteady a slope of 1:3 shall be used. The contractor must inform the Engineer before starting the work of the retaining wall structure and measurement shall be carried out. Boulder filling shall be provided without disturbing the weep hole.

Roadside Drain

The roadside drain shall be provided to receive the storm water from the road as well as from the sloping side of the wall. A V-shaped drain shall be provided with 1:20 slope, so that self-cleansing velocity can be maintained and to widen the road area. It shall be constructed in RCC with a reinforcement of 8 mm dia. and curing shall be maintain properly.

RCC Slab Culvert

The foundation or the base shall be compacted quite enough and using of M20 PCC shall be maintained. The abutment wall shall be stone masonry and the slab shall be of RCC and curing of all the works shall be maintained properly. No vehicle should run before the completion of curing (28 days).

Excavation of Soil

Excavation of soil for the proposed retaining wall and culvert shall be done during dry season for the prevention of erosion and scouring of soil as well as to prevent landslide.

Careful excavation shall be maintained under the supervision of expert operator or Engineer. Manual or mechanical excavation shall be utilize.

Foundation Soil

The foundation soil shall be native undisturbed on-site soils. The foundation soil shall be examined and approved by the Design Engineer, prior to placement of the levelling base, to ensure that it meets or exceeds the assumed design conditions. Where the foundation soil does not meet the design conditions, the unacceptable material will be removed and replaced with acceptable material. Compaction of the foundation shall be perform until the soil base is firm and steady.

Concrete

For Plain Cement Concrete a minimum of M10 shall be used for the foundation of retaining wall. All the available materials to be used for the construction work must be of good quality. Curing of all the concrete works must be taken care of to achieve high strength of concrete.

Cement Mortar

A mortar of 1:3 shall be used for the bonding of stone masonry in retaining wall and culvert abutment. Culvert abutment shall be plastered by 15mm thick, a minimum of 1:3 mortar with a mixture of waterproof materials.

Materials

i) Cement

Any of the following types of cement capable of achieving the design strength may be used with prior approval of the Engineer, but the preference should be the used of 43 grade:

- a) Ordinary Portland Cement, 33 Grade, IS:269
- b) Ordinary Portland Cement, 43 Grade, IS:8112

If the soil around has soluble salts, like, sulphates in excess of 0.5 per cent, the cement used shall be sulphate resistant and shall conform to IS: 12330.

ii) Aggregate

Coarse aggregate shall consist of clean, hard, strong, dense, non-porous and durable pieces of crushed stone or crushed gravel and shall be devoid of pieces of disintegrated stone, soft, flaky, elongated, very angular or splintery pieces. The maximum size of coarse aggregate shall not exceed 25 mm for pavement concrete.

No aggregate which has water absorption more than 2 per cent shall be used in the concrete mix.

The fine aggregate shall consist of clean natural sand or crushed stone sand or a combination of the two and shall conform to IS: 383. Fine aggregate shall be free from soft particles, clay, shale, loam, cemented particles, mica and organic and other foreign matter.

iii) Masonry

Coursed and un-coursed rubble stone masonry shall be used for the construction of the retaining wall. All the materials shall be of good quality and shall be in good condition. Water absorption of the masonry shall be 5-10%; water absorption more than 10% shall be rejected. The stone to be used in stone masonry retaining wall shall be heavy, strong and durable. All stone masonry shall be dip into water before placing to enhance the bonding between the stone with mortar.

iv) Fine Aggregate

Fine aggregates shall consist of crushed or naturally occurring material, or a combination of the two, passing 2.36 mm sieve and retained on the 75 micron sieve. They shall be clean, hard durable, dry and free from dust, and soft or friable matter, organic or other deleterious matter.

Section IX. Drawings

Drawings can be obtained from the attachment. List of drawings include:

- 1. Lungzawl Road Drawing
- 2. Mualkawi Road Drawing
- 3. Thinglubul Road Drawing

Section X. Bill of Quantities

Lot 1: Thinglubul Road, Serchhip Lot: 1.1

Name of Road: Thinglubul Road at Serchhip

	Name of Road: I hinglubul R	uau at Self	ennip				Serchhi
	Length of the Road	6.40			District		p p
Sr.No	Description of item	Area (m2)	Thicknes s (m)	Unit	Quantit y	Rate (Rs. P)	Amoun t (Rs. P)
1	Compacting Original Ground. (ii) Compacting original ground supporting subgrade. Loosening of the ground upto a level of 300 mm below the subgrade level, watered, graded and compacted in layers for subgrade construction as per Technical Specification Clause 303.5.2.	22400.0 0	0.3	m3	6720.00		0.00
2	Repairs of Damages Caused by Rain/Spillage of Water Preparation and surface treatment of formation by removing mud and slurry, watering to the extent needed to maintain the desired moisture content, trimming to the required line, grade, profile and rolling with three wheel 80-100 kN static roller,						
	complete as per Technical Specification Clause 301.5.5.1	22400.0 0		m2	22400.00		0.00
3	Water Bound Macadam Sub- base/base WBM Grading 1 Providing, laying, spreading and compacting stone aggregates of specific sizes to water bound macadam specification including spreading in uniform thickness, hand packing, rolling with three wheel 80- 100 kN static roller in stages to proper grade and camber, applying and brooming, stone screening/binding materials to fill-up the interstices of coarse aggregate, watering and compacting to the required density Grading 1 as per Technical Specification Clause 404. By Manual Means	19200.0 0	0.125	m3	2400.00		0.00
4	Prime Coat	0	0.125	113	2400.00		0.00
1	Low porosity						

5	Providing and applying primer coat with bitumen emulsion (SS-1) on prepared surface of granular base including cleaning of road surface and spraying primer at the rate of 0.70-1.0 kg/sqm using mechanical means as per Technical Specification Clause 502 Tack Coat Providing and applying tack coat with Bitumen emulsion (RS-1) using emulsion distributor at the rate of 0.20 to 0.25 kg per sqm on the prepared bituminous surface cleaned with Hydraulic broom as per Technical	19200		<u>m2</u>	19200.00	0.00
	Specification Clause 503.	0		m2	19200.00	0.00
6	Bituminous Macadam		ıI			
	Providing and laying bituminous macadam with hot mix plant using crushed aggregates of grading as per Table 500.4 premixed with bituminous binder, transported to site upto a lead of 1000 m laid over a previously prepared surface with paver finisher to the required grade, level and alignment and rolled to achieve the desired compaction as per Technical Specification Clause 504.	19200.0 0	0.050	m3	960.00	0.00
	Seal Coat					
7	Providing and laying seal coat sealing the voids in a bituminous surface laid to the specified levels, grade and cross fall using Type A, Type B and Type C as per Technical Specification Clause 510 By Manual Means Case - I : Type A	19200				
				m2	19200	0.00
8	Loading and Unloading of Lime, A Brick Aggregate, Kankar, Building Stone for Masonry Work by Manual M	Rubbish		ulder,		
7	Loading of Lime, Aggregate, Stone Boul Kankar, Building Rubbish, Crushed Slay Work by manual means including a lead	g, Stone fo I upto 30 n	or Masonry			
	i)Loading of stone boulders	19200.0 0	0.125	m3	2400.00	0.00
	ii) Loading of aggregates	19200.0 0	0.06	m3	1152.00	0.00
	iii) Loading of sand	19200.0 0	0.01	m3	192.00	0.00

Section X. Bill of Quantities Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads - Ref. No: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2

Unloading of Lime, Aggregate, Stone B Aggregate, Kankar, Building Rubbish, C for Masonry Work by manual means inc m	Crushed Sla cluding a le	ag, Stone				
i)Unloading of stone boulders	19200.0 0	0.125	m3	2400.00		
ii) Unloading of aggregates	19200.0 0	0.06	m3	1152.00		
iii) Unloading of sand	19200.0 0	0.01	m3	192.00		
Loading and Unloading of Bitumen	Drums by	Manual Mea	ans			
Loading of Bitumen Drums by manual n upto 30 m	neans inclu	ding a lead				
	2.45	1440	tonn e	3528.00		
Unloading of Bitumen Drums by Manu lead upto 30 m	ual Means	including a				
	2.45	1440	tonn			
			e	3528.00		
Haulage excluding Loading and Unloading						
Haulage of materials by tipper excluding cost of loading, unloading and stacking						
Case-I : Surfaced road						
			T/k			
a) Stone boulders	20.00	Kms	m	7769.60		
b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/k m	8208.00		
c) Sand	20.00	Kms	T/k m	660.48		
d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/k m	7056.00		
Case-II: Unsurfaced gravel road						
a) Stone boulder	20.00	Kms	T/k m	7769.60		
b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/k m	8208.00		
c) Fine aggregrates	20.00	Kms	T/k m	660.48		
d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/k m	7056.00		
					Total=	
		Add 12%	6 GST			
	Add	5% conting	encies			
					G. Total=	

Amount in words (G. Total) Rupees_____

_____ only.

Note:

Length of the road	Kms	6.40
Width of WBM	Μ	3.00
Width of carriageway	Μ	3.00
Total area of WBM	Sqm	19200.00
Total area of Carriageway	Sqm	19200.00

LOU: 1.2	Lot:	1.2
----------	------	-----

	BoQ FORMAT Name of Road				choool			Diamy	
SI.	Name of Koad					Thinglu	ıbul road	D - 4 -	
No	Description of item	No.	Length	Width	Height	Quantity	Unit –	Rate ₹	Amount in ₹
1	Earthwork in excavation	for fo	(m) undation of	(m) Structure	(m) s upto 3 m	depth as per			
-	drawing and technical sp construction of shoring a matter, dressing of sides	ecifica nd bra	tion Clause cing, remo	e 1104 incl val of stun	udding set nps and otl	ting out, her deleterio	us		
	Ordinary soil								
	Side Drain	1	6400.00	0.3	0.30	576			
					Total:	576.00	cum		₹ 0.00
	Ordinary rock (not requiring blasting)								
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.40	1.50	8.4			
	Catch pit	1	1.20	1.40	1.50	2.52			
	Cross Drain	18	4.00	0.90	1.00	64.8			
	Catch pit	18	0.90	0.90	1.00	14.58			
					Total:	90.30	cum		₹ 0.00
	P.C.C grade M20								
	-								
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.40	0.15	0.84			
	Catch pit	1	1.40	1.20	0.15	0.252			
	Cross Drain	18	4.00	0.90	0.15	9.72			
	Catch pit	18	0.90	0.90	0.15	2.187			
	Side Drain	2	6400.00	0.30	0.10	384			
					Total:	397.00	cum		₹ 0.00
3	Stone masonry in cement technical specification Cl In 1:3 cement mortar					per drawing	&		
	Culvert 1:								
	Curvent 1. Cross Drain	2	4.00	0.2	1.00	1.6	 		
	Closs Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall	36	4.00	0.2	0.50	14.4	 		
	Catch Pit	2	2.50	0.2	2.50	2.5	├		
	Cross Drain W/L	4	1.40	0.2	1.50	1.68	├		
	Cross Drain Catch pit	36	2.00	0.2	1.50	21.6	├		
	Cross Drain Catch ph	36	0.90	0.2	1.00	6.48			
	l	36	0.90	0.2	1.00	6.48			
				0.4	1.00				
		50	0.90		Total:	54.74	cum		₹ ∩ ∩
4	Providing and laying r concrete in superstruct and technical specifica	einfor cture a	ced cemer is per drav	ving	Total:	54.74	cum		₹ 0.00
4	concrete in superstruc	einfor cture a	ced cemer is per drav	ving	Total:	54.74	cum		₹ 0.0

	Culvert Slab								
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.4	0.13	0.7			
	Cross Drain	18	4.00	0.9	0.13	8.1	cum		₹ 0.00
					Total:	8.80			
5	Supplying, fitting, ar superstructure comp specifications Claus	olete as p	ber drawir	ng and te					
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.4	0.13	0.7			
	Cross Drain	18	4.00	0.9	0.13	8.1			
						8.80			
	Slab @ 100kg/cum			100.00	8.80	880.00	kg		
					Total:	0.88	Ton		₹ 0.00
								Total	₹ 0.00
								Add 12% GST	₹ 0.00
						A	dd 5% fo	r contingenties	₹ 0.00
						Add 3	3.75% fo	r Cost of Index	₹ 0.00

Amount in words (G. Total)

Rupees_

only.

Lot 2: Mualkawi Road, Baktawng Lot: 2.1

BoQ FORMAT OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT FOR AGRICULTURE LINK ROAD

Name of Road -

Mualkawi road at Baktawng

	Length of the Road	5.60kms			District		Serchhip
Sr.No.	Description of item	Area (m2)	Thickness (m)	Unit	Quantity	Rate (Rs. P)	Amount (Rs. P)
1	Compacting Original Ground.						
	(ii) Compacting original ground supporting subgrade. Loosening of the ground upto a level of 300 mm below the subgrade level, watered, graded and compacted in layers for subgrade construction as per Technical Specification Clause 303.5.2.	19600.00	0.3	m3	5880		0.00
2	Repairs of Damages Caused by Rain/Spillage of Water						
	Preparation and surface treatment of formation by removing mud and slurry, watering to the extent needed to maintain the desired moisture content, trimming to the required line, grade, profile and rolling with three wheel 80-100 kN static roller, complete as per Technical Specification Clause 301.5.5.1	19600.00		m2	19600.00		0.00
3	Water Bound Macadam Sub-base/base	19000.00		1112	19000.00		0.00
	1) WBM Grading 1 Providing, laying, spreading and compacting stone aggregates of specific sizes to water bound macadam specification including spreading in uniform thickness, hand packing, rolling with three wheel 80-100 kN static roller in stages to proper grade and camber, applying and brooming, stone screening/binding materials to fill-up the interstices of coarse aggregate, watering and compacting to the required density Grading 1 as per Technical Specification Clause 404.						
	(A) By Manual Means	16800.00	0.125	m3	2100.00		0.00
4	Prime Coat						
	(i) Low porosity						
	Providing and applying primer coat with bitumen emulsion (SS-1) on prepared surface of granular base including cleaning of road surface and spraying primer at the rate of			m2	16800.00		0.00

	0.70-1.0 kg/sqm using mechanical means as					
	per Technical Specification Clause 502	16800.00				
5	Tack Coat (i) Providing and applying tack coat with Bitumen emulsion (RS-1) using emulsion distributor at the rate of 0.20 to 0.25 kg per sqm on the prepared bituminous surface cleaned with Hydraulic broom as per Technical Specification Clause 503.	1/2000.000		2	1,6800,00	0.00
	-	16800.00		m2	16800.00	0.00
6	Bituminous Macadam Providing and laying bituminous macadam with hot mix plant using crushed aggregates of grading as per Table 500.4 premixed with bituminous binder, transported to site upto a lead of 1000 m laid over a previously prepared surface with paver finisher to the required grade, level and alignment and rolled to achieve the desired compaction as per Technical Specification Clause 504.					
		16800.00	0.05	m3	840.00	0.00
7	Seal Coat Providing and laying seal coat sealing the voids in a bituminous surface laid to the specified levels, grade and cross fall using Type A, Type B and Type C as per Technical Specification Clause 510					
	A. By Manual Means					
	(ii) Bitumen S-65	16800.00		m2	16800.00	0.00
8	Construction of earthen shoulder. Construction of subgrade and earthen shoulder with approved material obtained from borrow pits with all lifts and leads, transporting to site, spreading, grading to required slope and compavted to meet requirement of table 300.2 with lead upto 1000m as per technical specification clause 303.1.	1680.00	0.220	m3	369.60	0.00
_	Carriage of Materials					
9	(i) Loading and unloading of Lime, Aggregates, Stone boulder,Brick Aggregates etc. by Mechanical means					
	i) Loading of aggregates	16800.00	0.060	m3	1008.00	0.00
	i) Loading of stone boulder	16800.00	0.125	m3	2100.00	 0.00
	ii) Loading of fine aggregrates	16800.00	0.010	m3	168.00	0.00

	(i) Loading and unloading of Lime, Aggregates, Stone boulder,Brick Aggregates etc. by Mechanical means						l
	i) Unloading of aggregates	16800.00	0.100	m3	1680.00		0.00
	i) Unloading of stone boulder	16800.00	0.125	m3	2100.00		0.00
	iii) Loading of fine aggregrates	16800.00	0.030	m3	504.00		0.00
10	Loading and Unloading of Bitumen Drums by Manual Means						
	(i) Loading of Bitumen Drums by manual means including a lead upto 30 m						
	(ii) Unloading of Bitumen Drums by Manual	16800.00	0.05	ton	2058.00		0.00
	Means including a lead upto 30 m	16800.00	0.05	ton	2058.00		0.00
11	Haulage excluding Loading and Unloading						
	Haulage of materials by tipper excluding cost of loading, unloading and stacking	L	ead		Required Quantity		
	Case-I : Surfaced road						
	a) Stone boulder	20.00	Kms	T/km	11970.00		0.00
	b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/km	9576.00		0.00
	c) Fine aggregrates	20.00	Kms	T/km	1733.76		0.00
	d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/km	4116.00		0.00
	Case-II : Unsurfaced gravel road						
	a) Stone boulder	20.00	Kms	T/km	11970.00		0.00
	b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/km	9576.00		0.00
	c) Fine aggregrates	20.00	Kms	T/km	1733.76		0.00
	d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/km	4116.00		0.00
						Total:	0.00
				Add	12% GST		0.00
			Add 5% f	for cont	ingencies		0.00
					G.Total	A=	0.00

Amount in words (G. Total) Rupees_____

____ only.

Note:

Length of the road	Kms	5.6
Width of WBM	Μ	3.00
Width of carriageway	Μ	3.00
Total area of WBM	Sqm	16800.00
Total area of Carriageway	Sqm	16800.00

Lot:	2.2
Lot.	2.2

	Name of Road					Mila	lkawi ro	nađ	
SI.	Description of item	No.	Length	Width	Height	Quantity	Unit	Rate	Amount in ₹
No	_		(m)	(m)	(m)			₹	
1	Earthwork in excavation drawing and technical sp construction of shoring a matter, dressing of sides								
	Ordinary soil								
	Side Drain	1	5600.00	0.3	0.30	504			
		1	5000.00	0.5	Total:	504	cum		₹ 0.00
	Ordinary rock (not requiring blasting)				Total.	504			
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.40	1.50	8.4			-
	Catch pit	1	1.20	1.40	1.50	2.52			
	Cross Drain	14	4.00	0.90	1.00	50.4			
	Catch pit	14	0.90	0.90	1.00	11.34			
					Total:	72.66	cum		₹ 0.0
	P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Catch pit	1	4.00	1.40	0.15	0.84			
	-	1	1.40	1.20	0.15	0.252			
	Cross Drain	14	4.00	0.90	0.15	7.56			
	Catch pit	14	0.90	0.90	0.15	1.701			
	Side Drain	2	5600.00	0.30	0.10	336			
2					Total:	346.35	cum		₹ 0.00
3	Stone masonry in cement technical specification Cl				-	as per draw	ing &		
	In 1:3 cement mortar								
	Culvert 1:	2	4.00	0.2	1.00	1.6			
	Cross Drain	28	4.00	0.2	0.50	11.2			
	Culvert 1 Wing wall	2	2.50	0.2	2.50	2.5			
	Catch Pit	4	1.40	0.2	1.50	1.68			
	Cross Drain W/L	28	2.00	0.2	1.50	16.8			
	Cross Drain Catch pit	28	0.90	0.2	1.00	5.04			
		28	0.90	0.2	1.00	5.04			
					Total:	43.86	cum		₹ 0.00
4	Providing and laying r concrete in superstruc								

	Culvert Slab												
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.4	0.13	0.7							
	Cross Drain	14	4.00	0.9	0.13	6.3			₹ 0.00				
					Total:	7.00	cum						
5	Supplying, fitting, and reinforcement in super as per drawing and tec Clauses 1002, 1010 and	struct hnica	ure comp	olete									
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.4	0.13	0.7							
	Cross Drain	14	4.00	0.9	0.13	6.3							
						7.00							
	Slab @ 100kg/cum			100.00	7.00	700.00	kg						
					Total:	0.7	Ton		₹ 0.00				
								Total	₹ 0.00				
	Add 12% GST												
	Add 5% for contingenties												
						Add 3.7	5% for	Cost of Index	₹ 0.00				
								Grand Total	₹ 0.00				

Lot 3: Lungzawl Road, E.Bungtlang

Lot: 3.1

BoQ FORMAT OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT FOR AGRICULTURE LINK ROAD

Name of Road -

Lungzawl road

				U			
	Length of the Road	7.00	1	1	District		Serchhip
Sr.No	Description of item	Area (m2)	Thicknes s (m)	Unit	Quantity	Rate (Rs. P)	Amount (Rs. P)
1	Compacting Original Ground.						
	(ii) Compacting original ground supporting subgrade. Loosening of the ground upto a level of 300 mm below the subgrade level, watered, graded and compacted in layers for subgrade construction as per Technical Specification Clause 303.5.2.	24500.00	0.3	m3	7350		0.00
2	Repairs of Damages Caused by Rain/Spillage of Water						
	Preparation and surface treatment of formation by removing mud and slurry, watering to the extent needed to maintain the desired moisture content, trimming to the required line, grade, profile and rolling with three wheel 80-100 kN static roller, complete as per Technical Specification Clause 301.5.5.1						
2	W.A., D., J.M., J., C.L	24500.00		m2	24500.00		0.00
3	Water Bound Macadam Sub- base/base 1) WBM Grading 1 Providing, laying, spreading and compacting stone aggregates of specific sizes to water bound macadam specification including spreading in uniform thickness, hand packing, rolling with three wheel 80-100 kN static roller in stages to proper grade and camber, applying and brooming, stone screening/binding materials to fill-up the interstices of coarse aggregate, watering and compacting to the required density Grading 1 as per Technical Specification Clause 404.						
	By Manual Means	21000.00	0.125	m3	2625.00		0.00
4	Prime Coat						

	Providing and applying primer coat with					
	bitumen emulsion (SS-1) on prepared surface of granular base including cleaning of road surface and spraying primer at the rate of 0.70-1.0 kg/sqm using mechanical means as per Technical Specification Clause 502					
		21000.00		m2	21000.00	 0.00
	Tack Coat (i) Providing and applying tack coat with Bitumen emulsion (RS-1) using emulsion distributor at the rate of 0.20 to 0.25 kg per sqm on the prepared bituminous surface cleaned with Hydraulic broom as per Technical Specification Clause 503.					
		21000.00		m2	21000.00	0.00
7	Bituminous Macadam Providing and laying bituminous macadam with hot mix plant using crushed aggregates of grading as per Table 500.4 premixed with bituminous binder, transported to site upto a lead of 1000 m laid over a previously prepared surface with paver finisher to the required grade, level and alignment and rolled to achieve the desired compaction as per Technical Specification Clause 504. Seal Coat Providing and laying seal coat sealing the	21000.00	0.05	<u>m3</u>	1050.00	0.00
	 voids in a bituminous surface laid to the specified levels, grade and cross fall using Type A, Type B and Type C as per Technical Specification Clause 510 A. By Manual Means (ii) Bitumen S-65 	21000.00		m2	21000.00	0.00
	Construction of earthen shoulder.					
	Construction of subgrade and earthen shoulder with approved material obtained from borrow pits with all lifts and leads, transporting to site, spreading, grading to required slope and compavted to meet requirement of table 300.2 with lead upto 1000m as per technical specification clause 303.1.					
		2100.00	0.220	m3	462.00	0.00

9	(i) Loading and unloading of Lime, Aggregates, Stone boulder,Brick Aggregates etc. by Mechanical means						
	i) Loading of aggregates	21000.00	0.060	m3	1260.00		0.00
	i) Loading of stone boulder	21000.00	0.125	m3	2625.00		0.00
	ii) Loading of fine aggregrates	21000.00	0.010	m3	210.00		0.00
	(i) Loading and unloading of Lime, Aggregates, Stone boulder,Brick Aggregates etc. by Mechanical means						
	i) Unloading of aggregates	21000.00	0.060	m3	1260.00		0.00
	i) Unloading of stone boulder	21000.00	0.125	m3	2625.00		0.00
	iii) Loading of fine aggregrates	21000.00	0.010	m3	210.00		0.00
10	Loading and Unloading of Bitumen Drums by Manual Means						
	(i) Loading of Bitumen Drums by manual	21000.00	0.05		2572.50		0.00
	means including a lead upto 30 m (ii) Unloading of Bitumen Drums by Manual Means including a lead upto 30	21000.00	0.05	ton	2572.50		0.00
11	m II. have all the Leading and	21000.00	0.03	ton	2572.50		0.00
	Haulage excluding Loading and Unloading Haulage of materials by tipper excluding		ead		Required		
	cost of loading, unloading and stacking Case-I : Surfaced road		cau		Quantity		
	a) Stone boulder	20.00	Kms	T/km	14962.50		0.00
	b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/km	7182.00		0.00
	c) Fine aggregrates	20.00	Kms	T/km	722.40		0.00
	d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/km	5145.00		0.00
	Case-II : Unsurfaced gravel road						
	a) Stone boulder	20.00	Kms	T/km	14962.50		0.00
	b) Aggregates	20.00	Kms	T/km	7182.00		0.00
	c) Fine aggregrates	20.00	Kms	T/km	722.40		0.00
	d) Bitumen	20.00	Kms	T/km	5145.00		0.00
						Total:	0.00
			Add 12 ⁰	% GST			0.00
		Add	5% conting	gencies			0.00
					G.To	atal —	0.00

Amount in words (G. Total) Rupees_____

only.

Note:

Length of the road	Kms	7.0
Width of WBM	m	3.00
Width of carriageway	m	3.00
Total area of WBM	Sqm	21000.00
Total area of Carriageway	Sqm	21000.00

	BoQ FORMAT FO						zawl roa	d	
SI.	Description of item		Longth	Width	Unight	Lung	Zawi 10	Rate	
No	Description of item	No.	Length		Height	Quantity	Unit	₹	Amount in ₹
1	Earthwork in excavation for foun	dation	(m) of structu	(m) res unto 1	(m) 3 m depth	as per drav	ving	•	
	and technical specification Clause and bracing, removal of stumps a bottom and backfilling with appro	1104 nd oth	includding er deleteri	setting o	ut, constr	uction of sh	oring		
	Ordinary soil								
	Side Drain	1	7000.00	0.3	0.30	630	cum		
					Total:	630.00	cum		₹ 0.00
	Ordinary rock (not requiring blasting)								
	Culvert 1:	1	4.00	1.40	1.50	8.4			
	Culvert 2	1	4.00	1.40	1.50	8.4			
	Catch pit	2	1.20	1.40	1.50	5.04			
	Cross Drain	27	4.00	0.90	1.00	97.2			
	Catch pit	27	0.90	0.90	1.00	21.87			
					Total:	140.01			Ŧ 0.00
2	Providing concrete for plain/reinf drawings and technical specificati P.C.C grade M20		lause 802, 8	803, 1202	undations & 1203	-	cum s per		
2	drawings and technical specification				undations				
2	drawings and technical specification				undations				₹ 0.00
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20	ons C	lause 802, 8	803, 1202	undations & 1203	complete as			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1:	ions C	lause 802, 8	803, 1202 1.40	undations & 1203 0.15	complete as			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2	1 1	4.00	803, 1202 1.40 1.40	0.15 0.15	complete as 0.84 0.84			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit	1 1 2	4.00 4.00 1.40	1.40 1.20	0.15 0.15 0.15	0.84 0.84 0.504			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain	1 1 1 2 27 27	4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15	0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit	1 1 2 27 27	4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 0.90	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805			
2	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit	1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 0.90 7000.00 bstructure	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total:	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04	s per		₹ 0.00
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar	1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 0.90 7000.00 bstructure	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total:	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1:	1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 0.90 7000.00 bstructure	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total:	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2	1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul 2, 704,	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing &	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1:	1 1 2 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 2 1 2 1 2 2 2	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1: Culvert 1 Wing wall	1 1 1 2 27 2 for sul 2,704, 2 2	4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00	1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 1.00	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain	I I 1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul 2 2, 704, 2 2 2 54 54	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 1.00 0.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6 21.6	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Catch Pit	1 1 1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul 2,704, 2 2 54 2	4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 4.00 2.50	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	1203 & 1203 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 1.00 0.50 2.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6 2.5	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Catch Pit Catch Pit	I I 1 1 2 27 27 2 for sul 2 2, 704, 2 2 54 2 2 54 2 2 2	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 2.50 2.50	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	Indations & 1203 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 0.50 2.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6 21.6 2.5 2.5	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Catch Pit	1 1 2 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 2 54 2 4	4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 2.50 1.40	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2	1203 & 1203 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 1.00 0.50 2.50 2.50 1.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6 2.5 2.5 1.68	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Catch Pit Catch Pit	Image: construction of the co	4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 0.90 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 2.50 1.40 1.20	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.30 complete 1204 0.2	Indations & 1203 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 0.50 2.50 1.50 1.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 21.6 2.5 1.68 1.44	s per		
	drawings and technical specification P.C.C grade M20 Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Catch pit Cross Drain Catch pit Side Drain Stone masonry in cement mortar technical specification Clauses 70 In 1:3 cement mortar Culvert 1: Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 2 Cross Drain Culvert 1 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Culvert 2 Wing wall Catch Pit Catch Pit Cross Drain W/L	1 1 1 2 27 27 27 27 27 2 54 2 4 54	4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 1.40 4.00 7000.00 bstructure 1202 and 4.00 4.00 4.00 2.50 1.40 1.20 2.00	1.40 1.40 1.40 1.20 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.	1203 & 1203 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.10 Total: as per dr 1.00 1.00 0.50 2.50 1.50 1.50 1.50	complete as 0.84 0.84 0.504 14.58 3.2805 420 440.04 awing & 1.6 1.6 2.5 2.5 1.68 1.44 32.4	s per		

Section X. Bill of Quantities Rehabilitation of existing Agriculture Link Roads - Ref. No: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2

5Supplying, fitting, and placing TMT bar reinforcement in superstructure complete as per drawing and technical specifications Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202Image: Clause of the spectrum Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202Culvert 1:14.001.40.130.728Culvert 214.001.40.130.728Cross Drain274.000.90.1312.636Slab @ 100kg/cum100.0013.551355.00			
Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Cross Drain 27 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.636 5 Supplying, fitting, and placing TMT bar reinforcement in superstructure complete as per drawing and technical specifications Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 1: 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Cross Drain 27 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.636 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Cross Drain 27 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.636 1 100.00 13.55 1355.00			
Image: Construction of the system Image: Text of tex			
27 4.00 0.75 12.050 Supplying, fitting, and placing TMT bar reinforcement in superstructure complete as per drawing and technical specifications Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202 Total: 14.09 c Culvert 1: 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 0.728 Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00 0.13 1355.00			
Supplying, fitting, and placing TMT bar reinforcement in superstructure complete as per drawing and technical specifications Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202 Image: Clause information inf			
reinforcement in superstructure complete as per drawing and technical specifications Clauses 1002, 1010 and 1202 Culvert 1: 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 2: 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Cross Drain 27 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.636 Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00	cum		₹ 0.00
Cross Drain 27 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00			
Culvert 2 1 4.00 1.4 0.13 0.728 Cross Drain 27 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.636 Image: Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00			
21 4.00 0.9 0.13 12.030 Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00			
Slab @ 100kg/cum 100.00 13.55 1355.00			
100.00 15.55 1555.00			
Total: 1.355	kg		
	Ton		₹ 0.0
		Total	₹ 0.0
	Ad	dd 12% GST	₹ 0.0
Add 5%		contingenties	₹ 0.0
Add 3.75%	% for c	Cost of Index	₹ 0.0
		Grand Total	₹ 0.00

Lot: 3.3

BoQ FORMAT FOR RETAINING WALL

						Lung	zawl ro	oad	
SI. No	Description of item	No.	Length	Width	Height	Quantity	Unit	Rate	Amount in
INU	Description of hem	110.	(m)	(m)	(m)	Quantity	om	₹	₹
1	Earthwork in excavation for specifications Clause 305.1 in bracing, removal of stumps a lead of 50 m, dressing of sides excavated suitable material.	cludin nd oth	ng setting o Ner deleter	out, const ious mat	ruction o erial and	f shoring ar disposal up			
	Ordinary soil								
	R.Wall 1:	1	29.00	1.02	0.60	17.748			
	R.Wall 2:	1	28.00	1.02	0.60	17.136			
	R.Wall 3:	1	30.00	1.1	0.60	19.80			
	R.Wall 4:	1	4.00	1.1	0.60	2.64			
					Total:	57.32	cum		₹ 0.00

2	Providing concrete for pla as per drawings and techn						lete		
	P.C.C grade M 10								
	R.Wall 1:	1	25.00	1.02	0.10	2.55			
	R.Wall 2:	1	28.00	1.02	0.10	2.86			
	R.Wall 3:	1	30.00	1.1	0.10	3.30			
	R.Wall 4:	1	4.00	1.1	0.10	0.44			
					Total:	9.15	cum		₹ 0.00
3	Stone masonry in cement technical specification Cla					per drawing	g &		
	In 1:4 cement mortar								
	R.Wall 1:	1	29.00	0.6	2.50	43.50			
	R.Wall 2:	1	28.00	0.6	2.50	42.00			
	R.Wall 3:	1	30.00	0.85	3.00	76.50			
	R.Wall 4:	1	4.00	0.85	3.00	10.20			
					Total:	172.20	cum		₹ 0.00
4	Backfilling behind abutm drawings & technical spec				ill comple	ete as per			
	Granular material	1	29.00	0.3	2.00	17.40	cum		
		1	28.00	0.3	2.00	16.80	cum		
		1	30.00	0.3	2.00	18.00	cum		
		1	4.00	0.3	2.00	2.40	cum		
					Total:	54.60	Sqm		₹ 0.00
								Total:	₹ 0.00
							Add	112% GST	₹ 0.00
			Add 5 % for contingencies					₹ 0.00	
		Add 3.75% for cost index					₹ 0.00		
								Grand Total	₹ 0.00

Amount in words (G. Total)

Rupees_

only.

Dayworks

Schedule of Dayworks Rates: Materials

Item no.	Description	Unit	Nominal quantity	Rate	Extended amount
1	WBM (Water Bound Macadam) G-1	m ³	1		
2	Aggregate for screening (Grade-A)	m²	1		
3	Bitumen drums S-65	ton	1		
4	Crushed Aggregate (Grade -1)	m ³	1		
5	Fine Aggregate	m ³	1		
6	Cement 43 grade OPC	Bag/m ³	1		
7	Course aggregate	m ³	1		
8	HYSD bars	kg	1		
9	Course rubble Stone Masonry	nos	1		
				Subtotal	
	Allow percent ^a of subtotal for comprofit, etc.				
	(carried forward				

a. To be entered by the bidder.

Schedule of Dayworks Rates: Labour

ltem no.	Description	Unit	Nominal quantity	Rate	Extended amount	
1	Skilled Labour	nos	1			
2	Semi-skilled labour nos 1					
3	Un-skilled labour	nos	1			
	Subtota					
	Total for dayworks: Labour					
	(carried forward to daywo	rks summ	ary, p)			

a. To be entered by the bidder.

Schedule of Dayworks Rates: Contractor's Equipment

ltem no.	Description	Nominal quantity (hours)	Basic hourly rental rate	Extended amount
1	Road Roller(8 TPH)	1		
2	Truck/Tripper (4 cu.m)	1		
3	207 pickup truck (2 cu.m)	1		
4	Hot mix plant (1 TPH)	1		
5	Air compressor (3 HP)	1		
6	Sprayer/Distributor (200 L/h)	1		
7	Vibrator (2 HP)	1		
8	Mixer (500 ltr)	1		
9	Generator (2 KVA)	1		
	Allow _ percent ^a of Subtotal for Contractor's overhead, profit, etc.			
(carried for	yworks: contractor's equipment ward to Dayworks Summary, p)			

a. To be entered by the bidder

Dayworks Summary

Particulars	Amount ^a ()
1. Total for dayworks: Labour	
2. Total for dayworks: Materials	
3. Total for dayworks: Contractor's Equipment	
Total for dayworks (Provisional Sum) (carried forward to Bid Summary, p)	

a. All prices should be INR

Section XI. Contract Forms

Section XI (A). Notice of Intent to Award	113
Section XI (B). Letter of Acceptance	115
Section XI (C). Contract Agreement	116
Section XI (D). Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment	118
Section XI (E). Performance Security Form	

Section XI (A). Notice of Intent to Award

This is not a notification of award or letter of acceptance. The employer intends to contract to be formed with this notice.

[letterhead paper of the employer]

Insert project logo (if existing)

For the attention of the bidder's authorized representative

Name: [insert authorized representative's name]

Address: [insert authorized representative's address]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert authorized representative's telephone/fax numbers]

Email Address: [insert authorized representative's email address]

DATE OF TRANSMISSION: [insert date]

Procuring entity: Society for Climate Resilient Agriculture in Mizoram (SCRAM)

Procurement title: Construction of Agriculture Link Roads (Flexible Pavement- using Bituminous Macadam)

Ref no: MZ/PMU/PP 2021-22/W/2

This notice of intent to award (NOITA) notifies you of our decision to award the above contract to [insert the successful bidder].

Please note that this notice does not constitute any contract between the procuring entity and the bidder and neither establishes any legal rights or obligations for the procuring entity or bidder.

[IMPORTANT: provide the results of the evaluation and the prices of each bidder [if applicable] in this NOITA].

Name of bidder	Points scored	Bid price	Evaluated bid price <i>(if applicable)</i>
[insert name]	[insert points]	[insert bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert points]	[insert bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert points]	[insert bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert points]	[insert bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert points]	[insert bid price]	[insert evaluated price]

If your bid has not been successful, you may request a debriefing in relation to the results of the evaluation of your bid. If you decide to request a debriefing, your written request must be made within *[insert number of stated in the bidding document and see the module M1 on debriefs in the IFAD Procurement Handbook for more information]* business days of receipt of this NOITA.

If your request for a debriefing is received within the deadline above, we will provide the debriefing within *[insert number stated in the bidding document and see the module M1 on debriefs in the IFAD Procurement Handbook for more information]* business days of receipt of your request.

The debriefing may be in writing, by video conference call or in person. We shall promptly advise you in writing how the debriefing will take place and confirm the date and time.

The period within which you can protest the procurement proceedings lasts [insert number stated in the bidding document and see the module M2 on protests in the IFAD Procurement Handbook for more information] business days after the date of transmission of this NOITA.

Yours sincerely,

Authorised Official

Section XI (B). Letter of Acceptance

Notes on standard form of letter of acceptance

The letter of acceptance will be the basis for formation of the contract as described in clauses 35.1 of the Instructions to Bidders. This standard form of letter of acceptance is included for information at the bidding stage and shall be filled in and sent to the successful bidder only after evaluation of bids has been completed.

[letterhead paper of the employer]

To:

[name of the contractor]

[address of the contractor]

This is to notify you that your bid dated ______for the execution of the ______

[name of the contract and identification number, as given in the

SCC] for the Contract Price of ______ (_______) [amount in

numbers and words]_____, as corrected and modified in accordance

with the instruction to bidders, is hereby accepted by the employer.

You are hereby instructed to proceed with the execution of the said works in accordance with the contract documents.

Authorized Signature:	
Name and Title of Signatory:	
Name of Agency:	

Attachment: Contract Agreement

[date]

Section XI (C). Contract Agreement

Notes on standard form of agreement

The agreement should incorporate any corrections or modifications to the bid resulting from price corrections and price adjustment during the evaluation process as provided for the in the Instructions to Bidders and any other agreement following award of the contract.

	Contract Agreement	
This Agreement, made the	day of	202
, bet	ween	
[name and address of employer] (hereinafter called "the employer")	and
[name and address of co	ntractor] (hereinafter called "the cor	ntractor") of the other part

Whereas the employer is desirous that the contractor execute

[name and identification number of contract] (hereinafter called "the works") and the employer has accepted the bid by the contractor for the execution and completion of such works and the remedying of any defects therein.

Now with this agreement witnesseth as follow:

- 1. In this agreement, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the conditions of contract hereinafter referred to, and they shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this agreement.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of the agreement and shall have the order of precedence as listed below:
 - a. Agreement,
 - b. Letter of acceptance
 - c. Contractor's letter of bid
 - d. Special conditions of contract- SCC

- e. General conditions of contract-GCC
- f. Specifications
- g. Drawings
- h. Bills of quantities (or activity schedules), and
- i. Any other documents listed in the SCC as forming part of the contract.
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the employer to the contractor as specified in the letter of acceptance, the contractor hereby covenants with the employer to execute the works and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the contract.
- 4. The employer hereby covenants to pay the contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the works and the remedying of defects therein, the contract price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.
- 5. IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of *[Republic of India]*. . . . on the day, month and year specified above.

Signed by:	Signed by:
for and on behalf of the Employer	for and on behalf the Contractor
in the presence of:	in the presence of:
Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date	Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Section XI (D). Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment

This sample of advance payment guarantee is for information only. Bidders should not complete the form at this time as only the successful bidder will be required to provide the advance payment guarantee.

To: [name and address of employer] [name and procurement number of contract]

Gentlemen:

In accordance with the provisions of the conditions of contract, clause 24 "Advance" of the above-mentioned contract, *[name and address of contractor]* (hereinafter called "the contractor") shall deposit with *[name of employer]* a bank guarantee to guarantee his proper and faithful performance under the said clause of the contract in an amount of *[amount of guarantee]* [amount in words].⁵

We, the *[bank or financial institution]*, as instructed by the contractor, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as surety merely, the payment to *[name of employer]* on his first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without his first claim to the contractor, in the amount not exceeding *[amount of guarantee] [amount in words]*.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the contract or of works to be performed thereunder or of any of the contract documents which may be made between [name of employer] and the contractor, shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

This guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the contract until *[name of employer]* receives full repayment of the same amount from the contractor.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement requirement of Article 15(a) is hereby excluded and as may otherwise be stated above.

Yours truly,

Signature and seal: _____

Name of Bank: _____

⁵ An amount is to be inserted by the Bank or Financial Institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

Address: _____

Date:_____

Section XI (E). Performance Security Form

To: [name of employer]

WHEREAS [name of contractor] (hereinafter called "the contractor") has undertaken, in pursuance of contract No. [reference number of the contract] dated [insert contract date] to supply [description of works] (hereinafter called "the contract").

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said contract that the contractor shall furnish you with a bank guarantee by a reputable bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with the contractor's performance obligations in accordance with the contract.

AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the contractor a guarantee:

THEREFORE WE hereby affirm that we are guarantors and responsible to you, on behalf of the contractor, up to a total of *[amount of the guarantee in words and figures]*, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand declaring the contractor to be in default under the contract and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of *[amount of guarantee]* as aforesaid, without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee is valid until the _____day of _____20.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement requirement of Article 15(a) is hereby excluded and as may otherwise be stated above.

Signature and seal of the guarantors

[name of bank or financial institution]

[address]

Section XI (F). Self-Certification Form

This self-certification form is to be completed by the contractor. The contractor shall submit the completed form together with the signed contract agreement to **Society for Climate Resilient Agriculture in Mizoram (SCRAM)**. Instructions for completing this form are provided below.

Full legal name of contractor:	
Full legal name of contractor's legal representative and position:	
Full name and number of contract:	
Project with which contract was signed:	
Country:	
Date:	

I hereby certify that I am the authorized representative of [name of the contractor], as well as that the information provided herein is true and accurate in all material respects and understand that any material misstatement, misrepresentation or failure to provide the information requested in this self-certification may result in sanctions and remedies, including the suspension or termination of the contract between the contractor and the procuring entity, as well as the permanent ineligibility to participate in IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed activities and operations, in accordance with the IFAD Procurement Guidelines, the IFAD Procurement Handbook and other applicable IFAD policies and procedures, including IFAD's Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations (accessible at www.ifad.org/anticorruption_policy) and its Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sexual Harassment, Sexual Exploitation Abuse (accessible and at https://www.ifad.org/en/document-detail/asset/40738506).

Authorized Signature:

_____ Date: _____

Printed Name of Signatory:

- □ The contractor certifies that itself, including its director(s), partner(s), proprietor(s), key personnel, agents, sub-consultants, sub-contractors, consortium and joint venture partners have **NOT** engaged in fraudulent, corrupt, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices, in connection with the present procurement process and this contract.
- The contractor declares that the following criminal convictions, administrative sanctions (including debarments under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions or the "Cross-Debarment Agreement")⁶ and/or temporary suspensions have been imposed on the contractor and/or any of its directors, partners, proprietors, key personnel, agents, subconsultants, sub-contractors, consortium and joint venture partners:

Nature of the measure (i.e., criminal conviction, administrative sanction or temporary suspension)	Imposed by	Name of party convicted, sanctioned or suspended (and relationship to contractor)	Grounds for the measure (i.e., fraud in procurement or corruption in contract execution)	Date and time (duration) of measure

If no criminal convictions, administrative sanctions or temporary suspensions have been imposed, indicate "none".

- The contractor certifies that its director(s), proprietor(s), and personnel, and the personnel of its agents, sub-consultants, sub-contractors, consortium and joint venture partners are NOT subject to a criminal conviction, administrative sanctions or investigations for incidents of sexual harassment and sexual exploitation and abuse.
- □ The contractor certifies that itself, its proprietor(s), agents, sub-consultants, sub-contractors, consortium and joint venture partners have **NO** actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflicts of interest and specifically that they:
 - Do not have any actual or potential, and do not reasonably appear to have, at least one controlling partner in common with one or more other parties in the bidding process or the execution of the contract ;
 - Do not have any actual or potential, and do not reasonably appear to have the same legal representative as another bidder for purposes of this bid or execution of the contract;
 - Do not have any actual or potential, and do not reasonably appear to have a relationship, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to undue or undisclosed information about or influence over the bid process and the execution of the contract, or influence the decisions of the procuring entity regarding the selection process for this procurement or during the execution of the contract;

	Do not participate and do not potentially or reasonably appear to participate in more than one bid in this process; and
	Do not have any actual or potential, and do not reasonably appear to have, a business or family relationship with, a member of the procuring entity's board of directors or its personnel, the Fund or its personnel, or any other individual that was, has been or might reasonably be directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the bidding document, (ii) the selection process for this procurement, or (iii) execution of the contract, unless the actual, potential or reasonably conflict stemming from this relationship has been explicitly authorized by the Fund in writing.
	[To be completed only if the previous boxes were not checked] The contractor declares the following actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflicts of interest, that may affect, or might reasonably be perceived by others to affect, impartiality in any matter relevant to the procurement process, including the selection process and the execution of the contract, with the understanding and acceptance that any action upon this disclosure shall be entirely under the Fund's discretion:
	[provide detailed description of any actual, potential or reasonably perceived conflicts of interest including their nature and the personnel, proprietor(s), agents, sub-consultants, sub-contractors, consortium or joint venture partners affected.]
The contractor certifies that NO gratuities, fees, commissions, gifts or anything else of value, other than those shown in the bid, have been paid or exchanged or are to be paid or exchanged with respect to the present procurement process and this contract.	
OR	
□ [To be completed only if the previous box was not checked] The contractor declares that the following gratuities, fees, commissions, gifts or anything else of value have been exchanged, paid or are to be exchanged or paid with respect to the present procurement process and this contract:	
	lame of Recipient/Address/Date/Reason/Amount] lame of Recipient/Address/Date/Reason/Amount]
	ontractor acknowledges and accepts to notify the procuring entity in the event of any ial change in connection with this self-certification form throughout the duration of the act.

⁶ The Cross-Debarment Agreement was entered into by the World Bank Group, the Inter-American Development Bank, the African Development Bank and the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, additional information may be located at: http://crossdebarment.org/.

Instructions for completing the self-certification form

The World Bank listing of ineligible firms and individuals is a searchable database that returns a positive or negative search results page upon submission of a name to be searched, in order to document the eligibility.

The contractor should print out, date, and attach the results page(s) to the self-certification form, which should read, "no matching records found".

If (a) record(s) has/have been found – i.e. the results page(s) shows one or more individuals or entities, including the contractor itself are ineligible for contracts of the World Bank on the grounds of "cross-debarment", the contractor should provide a detailed account of these sanctions and their duration as applicable or notify the procuring entity and in case the contractor believes the finding is a "false positive".

The procuring entity will determine whether to proceed with the contract or allow the contractor to make a substitution. This determination will be made on a case by case basis and will require approval by IFAD regardless of the estimated value of the proposed contract.

All of these documents must be retained by the contractor as part of the overall record of the contract with the procuring entity for the duration of the contract and for a minimum period of three years following the completion of the contract.

Section XI (G). Revised IFAD Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations

I. Introduction

- 1. The Fund recognizes that the prevention and mitigation of fraud and corruption in its activities and operations are core components of its development mandate and fiduciary duties. The Fund does not tolerate the diversion or waste of its resources through the practices defined in paragraph 6 below.
- 2. The objective of this policy is to establish the general principles, responsibilities and procedures to be applied by the Fund in preventing and addressing prohibited practices in its activities and operations.
- 3. This policy takes effect on the date of its issuance. It supersedes and replaces the IFAD Policy on Preventing Fraud and Corruption in its Activities and Operations (EB 2005/85/R.5/Rev.1) dated 24 November 2005.

II. Policy

A. General principles

- 4. The Fund has no tolerance towards prohibited practices in its activities and operations. All individuals and entities listed in paragraph 7 below must take appropriate action to prevent, mitigate and combat prohibited practices when participating in an IFADfinanced and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity.
- 5. The Fund endeavours to ensure that individuals and entities that help to prevent or report, in good faith, allegations of prohibited practices are protected against retaliation and to protect individuals and entities that are the subject of unfair or malicious allegations.

B. Prohibited practices

- 6. The following practices are considered to be prohibited practices when engaged in connection with an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity:
 - (a) A "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value in order to improperly influence the actions of another party;
 - (b) A "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party in order to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - (c) A "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including improperly influencing the actions of another party;

- (d) A "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party in order to improperly influence the actions of that or another party;
- (e) An "obstructive practice" is: (i) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing evidence that may be material to an investigation by the Fund or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an investigation by the Fund; (ii) threatening, harassing or intimidating any party in order to prevent that party from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to an investigation by the Fund or from pursuing such an investigation; and/or (iii) the commission of any act intended to materially impede the exercise of the Fund's contractual rights of audit, inspection and access to information.

C. Scope

- 7. This policy applies to all IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operations and activities and to the following individuals and entities:
 - (a) IFAD staff and other persons working for IFAD as non-staff personnel ("IFAD
 - (b) staff and non-staff personnel");
 - (c) Individuals and entities holding a commercial contract with the Fund and any of their agents or personnel ("vendors");
 - (d) Public entities receiving IFAD financing or financing managed by the Fund and any of their agents or personnel ("government recipients") and private entities receiving IFAD financing or financing managed by the Fund and any of their agents or personnel ("non-government recipients") (all collectively referred to as "recipients"); and
 - (e) Individuals and entities, other than those referred to above, that receive, apply to receive, are responsible for the deposit or transfer of, or take or influence decisions regarding the use of proceeds from IFAD financing or financing managed by the Fund, including, but not limited to, implementing partners, service providers, contractors, suppliers, subcontractors, sub- suppliers, bidders, consultants and any of their agents or personnel. (All such individuals and entities are collectively referred to as "third parties".)

D. Responsibilities

(i) Responsibilities of the Fund

- 8. The Fund endeavours to prevent, mitigate and combat prohibited practices in its operations and activities. This may include adopting and maintaining:
 - (a) Communication channels and a legal framework designed to ensure that this policy is communicated to IFAD staff and non-staff personnel, vendors, recipients and third parties and that it is reflected in procurement documents and contracts relating to IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed activities and operations;

- (b) Fiduciary controls and supervisory processes designed to support adherence to this policy by IFAD staff and non-staff personnel, vendors, recipients and third parties;
- (c) Measures relating to the receipt of confidential complaints, whistle-blower protection, investigations, sanctions and disciplinary measures which are designed to ensure that prohibited practices can be properly reported and addressed; and
- (d) Measures designed to ensure that the Fund can report individuals and entities that have been found to have engaged in prohibited practices to other multilateral organizations which may be exposed to similar actions by the same individuals and entities and to local authorities in cases where local laws may have been violated.

(ii) Responsibilities of IFAD staff and non-staff personnel, vendors and third parties

- 9. When participating in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, IFAD staff and non-staff personnel, vendors and third parties will:
 - (a) Refrain from engaging in prohibited practices;
 - (b) Participate in due diligence checks and disclose, as required, information relating to themselves or any of their key personnel concerning relevant criminal convictions, administrative sanctions and/or temporary suspensions; information concerning agents engaged in connection with a procurement process or contract, including the commissions or fees paid or to be paid; and information concerning any actual or potential conflicts of interest in connection with a procurement process or the execution of a contract;
 - (c) Promptly report to the Fund any allegations or other indications of prohibited practices that come to their attention by virtue of their involvement in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity;
 - (d) Fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the Fund, including by making personnel available for interviews and providing full access to any and all accounts, premises, documents and records (including electronic records) relating to the relevant IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, and by having such accounts, premises, documents and records audited and/or inspected by auditors and/or investigators appointed by the Fund; and
 - (e) Maintain strict confidentiality regarding any and all information received as a consequence of their participation in an IFAD investigation or sanctioning process.
- 10. When participating in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, vendors and third parties will maintain all accounts, documents and records relating to that operation or activity for an adequate period of time, as specified in the relevant procurement documents or contract.

(iii) Responsibilities of recipients

11. When participating in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, recipients will take appropriate action to prevent, mitigate and combat prohibited practices. In particular, they will:

- (a) Adopt appropriate fiduciary and administrative practices and institutional arrangements in order to ensure that the proceeds of any IFAD financing or financing managed by the Fund are used only for the purposes for which they were provided;
- (b) During selection processes and/or prior to entering into a contractual relationship with a third party, conduct appropriate due diligence checks of the selected bidder or potential contractor, including by verifying whether the selected bidder or potential contractor is publicly debarred by any of the IFIs that are signatories to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions⁷ and, if so, whether the debarment meets the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions;
- (c) Take appropriate action to inform third parties and beneficiaries (defined as "persons whom the Fund intends to serve through its grants and loans") of the present policy as well as the Fund's confidential and secure e-mail address for the receipt of complaints concerning prohibited practices;
- (d) Include provisions in procurement documents and contracts with third parties which:
 - (i) Require third parties to disclose, in the course of a procurement process and any time thereafter, information relating to themselves or any of their key personnel concerning relevant criminal convictions, administrative sanctions and/or temporary suspensions; information concerning agents engaged in connection with a procurement process or the execution of a contract, including the commissions or fees paid or to be paid; and information concerning any actual or potential conflicts of interest in connection with a procurement process or the execution of a contract;
 - (ii) Require third parties to promptly report to the Fund any allegations or other indications of prohibited practices that come to their attention by virtue of their involvement in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity;
 - (iii) Inform third parties of the Fund's jurisdiction to investigate allegations and other indications of prohibited practices and to impose sanctions on third parties for such practices in connection with an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity;
 - (iv) Require third parties to fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the Fund, including by making personnel available for interviews and by providing full access to any and all accounts, premises, documents and records (including electronic records) relating to the relevant IFAD- financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity and to have such accounts, premises, records and documents audited and/or inspected

⁷ The Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions, dated 9 April 2010, was signed by five of the leading IFIs, namely, the African Development Bank Group, the Asian Development Bank, the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American Development Bank and the World Bank Group.

- (v) by auditors and/or investigators appointed by the Fund;
- (vi) Require third parties to maintain all accounts, documents and records relating to an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity for an adequate period of time as agreed with the Fund;
- (vii) Inform third parties of the Fund's policy of unilaterally recognizing debarments imposed by other IFIs if such debarments meet the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions; and
- (viii) Provide for early contract termination or suspension by the recipient if such termination or suspension is required as a consequence of a temporary suspension or sanction imposed or recognized by the Fund;
- (e) Promptly inform the Fund of any allegations or other indications of Prohibited Practices that come to their attention;
- (f) Fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the Fund, including by making personnel available for interviews and by providing full access to any and all accounts, premises, documents and records (including electronic records) relating to the relevant IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity and to have such accounts, premises, documents and records audited and/or inspected by auditors and/or investigators appointed by the Fund;
- (g) Maintain all accounts, documents and records relating to an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity for an adequate period of time, as specified in the relevant financing agreement; and
- (h) Maintain strict confidentiality regarding any and all information received as a consequence of their participation in an IFAD investigation or sanctioning process.
- 12. Where the Fund finds that prohibited practices have occurred, recipients will: (a) Take appropriate corrective measures in coordination with the Fund; and (b) Give full effect to any temporary suspension or sanction imposed or recognized by the Fund, including by not selecting a bidder, not entering into a contract or suspending or terminating a contractual relationship.
- 13. Prior to the implementation of an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, government recipients will inform the Fund of the arrangements that they have made for receiving and taking action in response to allegations of fraud and corruption relating to the IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, including by designating an independent and competent local authority to be responsible for receiving, reviewing and investigating such allegations.
- 14. When participating in an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity, government recipients will, in consultation with the Fund, take timely and appropriate action to launch a local investigation into allegations and/or other indications of fraud and corruption relating to the IFAD-financed and/or IFAD- managed operation or activity; inform the Fund of the actions taken in any such investigation at such intervals as may be agreed upon by the recipient and the Fund on a case-by-case basis; and, upon the completion of such investigation, promptly share the findings and results

thereof, including the supporting evidence, with the Fund. Government recipients will work with the Fund to coordinate any actions other than investigations that they may wish to undertake in response to an alleged or otherwise indicated prohibited practice.

15. Government recipients are encouraged to have in place, in accordance with their laws and regulations, effective whistle-blower protection measures and confidential reporting channels in order to appropriately receive and address allegations of fraud and corruption relating to IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operations and activities.

E. Process

(i) Reporting

- 16. A designated confidential and secure e-mail address for the receipt of allegations of prohibited practices is available on the Fund's website.
- 17. In the event of uncertainty as to whether or not an act or omission constitutes a prohibited practice, the designated confidential and secure e-mail address may be used to seek guidance.
- 18. The Fund treats all reported allegations with strict confidentiality. This means that the Fund does not normally reveal the identity of a reporting party to anybody outside of the investigative, sanctioning or disciplinary process without the consent of the reporting party.
- 19. The Fund endeavours to provide protection from retaliation to any individuals or entities that have helped prevent or have reported to the Fund, in good faith, allegations or other indications of prohibited practices. IFAD staff and non-staff personnel are protected from retaliation under the Fund's Whistle-blower Protection Procedures.

(ii) Investigations

- 20. Where the Fund has reason to believe that prohibited practices may have occurred, the Fund may decide to review and investigate the matter, irrespective of any investigative actions launched or planned by the recipient.
- 21. The purpose of an investigation conducted by the Fund is to determine whether an individual or entity has engaged in one or more prohibited practices in connection with an IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity.
- 22. Reviews and investigations conducted by the Fund are, inter alia:
 - (a) Strictly confidential, meaning that the Fund does not disclose to anyone outside of the investigative, sanctioning or disciplinary process any evidence or information relating to the review or investigation, including the outcome of a review or investigation, unless such disclosure is allowed under the Fund's legal framework;
 - (b) Independent, meaning that no authority is allowed to interfere with an ongoing review or investigation or to otherwise intervene in, influence or stop such a review or investigation; and
 - (c) Administrative, as opposed to criminal, in nature, meaning that reviews and investigations conducted by the Fund are governed by the Fund's rules and procedures, not by local laws.

23. The office within the Fund that is mandated to conduct reviews and investigations into alleged or otherwise indicated prohibited practices is the Office of Audit and Oversight (AUO). Without prejudice to paragraphs 9(d) and 11(f), AUO may agree not to disclose to anybody outside of AUO any evidence or information that it has obtained on the condition that such evidence or information may be used solely for the purpose of generating new evidence or information, unless the provider of the evidence or information consents.

F. Sanctions and related measures

(i) Temporary suspensions

- 24. During the course of an IFAD review or investigation, or pending the conclusion of a sanctioning process, the Fund may decide, at any time, to temporarily suspend payments to IFAD non-staff personnel, non-government recipients, vendors or third parties or to temporarily suspend their eligibility to participate in IFAD- financed and/or IFAD-managed operations and activities for an initial period of six (6) months, subject to a possible extension of that suspension for an additional six (6) months.
- 25. IFAD staff may be temporarily suspended from their duties in accordance with the applicable human resources framework.

(ii) Sanctions

- 26. If the Fund determines that IFAD non-staff personnel, non-government recipients, vendors or third parties have engaged in prohibited practices, the Fund may impose administrative sanctions on such individuals or entities.
- 27. Sanctions are imposed on the basis of: (i) the findings and evidence presented by AUO, including mitigating and exculpatory evidence; and (ii) any evidence or arguments submitted by the subject of the investigation in response to the findings presented by AUO.
- 28. The Fund may apply any of the following sanctions or a combination thereof:
 - (a) Debarment, which is defined as declaring an individual or entity ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to: (i) be awarded any IFAD- financed contract; (ii) benefit, financially or otherwise, from any IFAD- financed contract, including by being engaged as a subcontractor; and (iii) otherwise participate in the preparation or implementation of any IFAD- financed and/or IFAD-managed operation or activity;
 - (b) Debarment with conditional release, which is defined as a debarment that is terminated upon compliance with conditions set forth in the sanction decision;
 - (c) Conditional non-debarment, which is defined as requiring an individual or entity to comply with certain remedial, preventive or other measures as a condition for nondebarment on the understanding that a failure to comply with such measures within a prescribed period of time will result in an automatic debarment under the terms provided for in the sanction decision;
 - (d) Restitution, which is defined as a payment to another party or the Fund (with respect to the Fund's resources) of an amount equivalent to the amount of the

diverted funds or the economic benefit obtained as a result of having engaged in a prohibited practice; and

- (e) Letter of reprimand, which is defined as a formal letter of censure for the actions of an individual or entity which informs that individual or entity that any future violation will lead to more severe sanctions.
- 29. The Fund may extend the application of a sanction to any affiliate of a sanctioned party even if the affiliate has not been directly involved in the prohibited practice. An affiliate is defined as any individual or entity that is: (i) directly or indirectly controlled by the sanctioned party; (ii) under common ownership or control with the sanctioned party; or (iii) acting as an officer, employee or agent of the sanctioned party, including owners of the sanctioned party and/or those who exercise control over the sanctioned party.
- 30. For the purposes of IFAD-financed and/or IFAD-managed operations and activities, the Fund may consider as debarred individuals and entities that have been debarred by another IFI where: (i) that IFI is a signatory to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions; and (ii) such debarment meets the requirements for mutual recognition under the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions.⁸

(iii) Disciplinary measures

31. If the Fund finds that IFAD staff have engaged in prohibited practices, the Fund may apply disciplinary measures and may require restitution or other compensation in accordance with the applicable human resources framework.

G. Referrals and information-sharing

- 32. The Fund may, at any time, refer information or evidence relating to an ongoing or completed investigative, sanctioning or disciplinary process to the local authorities of a Member State. In determining whether such a referral is appropriate, the Fund takes into consideration the interests of the Fund, the affected Member States, the individuals or entities under investigation and any other persons, such as witnesses, who are involved in the case.
- 33. If the Fund obtains information or evidence indicating potential wrongdoing in connection with the operations and/or activities of another multilateral organization, the Fund may make such information or evidence available to the other organization for the purposes of its own investigative, sanctioning or disciplinary processes.
- 34. In order to facilitate and regulate the confidential exchange of information and evidence with local authorities and multilateral organizations, the Fund seeks to conclude agreements which establish the rules for such an exchange.

H. Operational responses to Prohibited Practices

(i) Rejection of an award of contract

⁸ The Fund may, in the future, decide to also recognize debarments imposed by entities that are not signatories to the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions.

35. The Fund may refuse to give its no-objection to the award of a contract to a third party if it determines that the third party, or any of its personnel, agents, subconsultants, subcontractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, engaged in a prohibited practice while competing for the contract in question.

(ii) Declaration of misprocurement and/or ineligibility of expenditures

36. The Fund may, at any time, declare a misprocurement and/or the ineligibility of any expenditures associated with a procurement process or contract if it determines that a third party or a representative of the recipient has engaged in a prohibited practice in connection with the procurement process or contract at issue and that the recipient has not taken timely and appropriate action, satisfactory to the Fund, to address such practices when they occur.

(iii) Suspension or cancellation of loan or grant

37. If the Fund determines that a recipient has not taken timely and appropriate action, satisfactory to the Fund, to address prohibited practices when they occur, the Fund may suspend or cancel, in whole or in part, the loan or grant affected by such practices.